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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the company. The directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Chairman)

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan (Chief-Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 25 February 2019)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen (Resigned on 25 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John

Mr. Tam Wing Kin

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan
(Appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen (Resigned on 25 February 2019)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tam Wing Kin (Chairman)
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex (Chairman)
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan
(Appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen (Resigned on 25 February 2019)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex (Chairman)
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan
(Appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen (Resigned on 25 February 2019)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DA EH

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex (Chairman)
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan
(Appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen (Resigned on 25 February 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Appointed on 25 February 2019)
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen (Resigned on 25 February 2019)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit B, 5th Floor

Hang Cheong Factory Building

1 Wing Ming Street

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong Law
Tang Tso & Lau Solicitors

As to Cayman Islands Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
(Appointed on 11 July 2019)

RSM Nelson Wheeler
(Resigned on 11 July 2019)
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited

54th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited Hong Kong Branch
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.luxey.com.hk

STOCK CODE
8041
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George, aged 76, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 30 June 2014 and Chairman on 25 February
2019. He obtained a higher certificate in Mechanical Engineering
from Hong Kong Polytechnic and a diploma in Plastic Technology
from Stiddeutsche Kunstsoff-Zentrum, West Germany. He had
worked in multinational chemical companies for 30 years in sales,
marketing and management positions.

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, aged 34, is the Company Secretary, was
appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
on 25 February 2019 of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2008. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, aged 60, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained Ph.D. Degree in Computer Science from the University
of Minnesota, USA in 1989. In the same year, he was appointed
as an Associate, Research Staff in the Institute of Systems Science
at National University of Singapore. In 1999, he was awarded
a Teaching Excellence Appreciation Award by the Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and was elevated as a Senior Member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He is now the chairman and
chief executive officer of Asia Vision Technology Ltd.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Mr. Tam Wing Kin, aged 54, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008. He is a
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising). Previously, he had worked in one
of the leading international accountancy firms and several listed
companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in
accounting field.

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex, aged 57, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He is an Independent Non-executive Director of i-Control Holdings
Limited, listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. He is
also the independent non-executive director of Great Wall Belt &
Road Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from February 2015 to December 2018 and
the independent non-executive director of On Real International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange from July 2017 to September 2019. He obtained
a BSc (Hons) degree in Electrical Engineering from University of
Bath (UK) in 1986 and subsequently a MBA degree from Heriot
Watt University (UK). He has over 15 years working experience in
financial market and corporate finance activities in both Hong Kong
and China.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report (“ESG Report”) was prepared to summarise and report
the performance of Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”) on
the environmental, social and governance aspect. This ESG Report
has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) and its “comply
or explain” provisions as set out in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the overall
performances, risks, strategies, measures and commitments of
the Group in four areas, namely, working environment quality,
environmental protection, operating practices and community
investment for the year ended 30 June 2019 (“Reporting Period”).

During the Reporting Period, the Group is mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and garment
products, trading and provision of on-line shopping and media
related services, and money lending business. The principal places
of the business are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”), while the
Hong Kong office is mainly responsible for the relevant compliance
matters regarding to the Company’s listing on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and as the office of garment factory for processing
orders, customer service and general logistical matters.

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant change in the
principal business of the Group. Therefore, there was no substantial
change in the applicable reporting scope and policy used in the
Group's preparation of the ESG Report when compared with those
in the previous year, and this ESG Report will mainly focus on
the above businesses. The Group deployed specific staff to take
charge of the relevant work on the preparation of the ESG Report.
All information contained in this ESG Report is derived from the
official documents or internal statistical reports of the Group, and is
reviewed by the Board of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

For the Group’s corporate governance structure and other relevant
information, please refer to the corporate governance report on
pages 58 to 74 of this annual report.

MISSION AND VISION OF THE GROUP

Listed on the GEM, the Group is currently focusing on the
manufacturing and trading of swimwear and garment products,
trading and provision of online shopping and media related
services, and money lending business. We keep on strengthening
our production management, including raw materials procurement
and production technology, striving to provide quality products for
customers. Meanwhile, the management of the Group formulates
suitable business strategy to optimise internal resources by
following market trend and situation, continues to pursue business
diversification.

As a responsible enterprise, while promoting its business growth
actively, the Group is committed to striking a balance among the
interests of different stakeholders in the society. We value the
communication with investors, shareholders, customers, staff,
business partners and suppliers, society and other stakeholders in
getting to know what they need and balancing the interests of
each party proactively, so as to promote our corporate sustainable
development.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

In addition to reporting our achievements in this ESG Report, we
welcome stakeholders' feedback regarding our environmental,
social and governance approach and performance. Please share
your views with us through the followings:

Postal Address:  Unit B, 5th Floor,

Hang Cheong Factory Building,

1 Wing Ming Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2520 6020

Email: admin@luxey.com.hk
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group takes the sustainable operating model as one of the
issues of the principal business, targets to lower the negative
impact of the business on the environment. Therefore, we comply
with the environmental laws and regulations during the course of
operations. The Group sets up plants in the PRC and Cambodia
to manufacture swimwear and garment products. There is a set
of stringent production guidelines in our plants, including energy
conservation, control and disposition of pollutants and exhaust
gas. The production activities in our plants meet the Environmental
Protection Law of PRC, Law on Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources Management of Cambodia and other
environmental protection related laws.

Environmental protection is also a prerequisite in our business
process. We inspect every business process, reduce direct or indirect
emission and have implemented a series of internal codes. Apart
from satisfying the above-mentioned environmental protection
laws, these internal codes also take reference of the relevant
certified standards of the Group, which include Oeko-tex 100
Standard, WRAP Standard and Sedex Members Ethical Trade Audit
(SMETA) etc. To ensure the due implementation of such internal
codes, the Group arranges specialists to monitor and take part in
environmental protection exhibition regularly such as Eco Expo Asia,
so as to obtain the latest environmental technology information.

The Group also provides in-house training or guidelines for
every employee when joining the Group, so as to enhance
their environmental consciousness. We encourage and require
employees to conserve and protect the environment and reduce
resources consumption. Meanwhile, the Group reviews the
implementation of the abovementioned measures from time to
time, carries out improving measures when needed, strives to
enhance resource’s utilisation rate to achieve energy conservation
and emission reduction, pollutant reduction and environment
protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any
environmental protection laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to emissions of exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas, discharges into water and land, generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. The Group also confirmed
that it was not subject to relevant governmental penalties due
to any violation of aforesaid laws and regulations in the business
course during the Reporting Period.

Emissions

During normal production, the emissions generated by the Group
mainly comprise waste water, exhaust gas, scrap materials and
waste papers.

Air Pollution — Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Our products are stored in warehouses centrally and domestic
procurement is conducted in the place where we produce to
the greatest extent. This will facilitate locality of sources from
plants, warehouses to supply and lead to better procurement
transportation planning and unified external shipments of products,
so that we can reduce carbon emissions brought by diesel and
gasoline consumption during transportation.

Greenhouse gas emissions from daily business activities mainly
represent direct exhaust emissions from construction machineries
and transport vehicles while carrying out projects, as well as
electricity and paper consumption in office and warehouse. The
Group has issued specific internal guidance for regulating and
monitoring the greenhouse gas emissions and exhaust emissions
during the daily operation.

In addition, the Group maintains and repairs machineries,
equipment and vehicles on regular basis, with a view to prevent
them from generating excess emissions of exhaust caused by
broken parts and other reasons, and to facilitate the reduction of
fuel consumption. At the same time, we will review the internal
policy on a regular basis, and if necessary, we will develop and
adopt proper measures to improve carbon emissions, for example,
make adjustments to transporting vehicles and outsource part of
the transporting works to name a few when necessary.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERRE

The Group did not keep statistics on the number of kilometres
travelled for transporting vehicles, hence, no effective calculations
were made on the gas emission data generated by vehicles.
However, based on the conditions of the Group’s vehicles including
performance and fuel consumption, the Group believed the
emission generated by the Group's vehicles was at a reasonable
range.

Waste Treatment

Wastes produced from normal business activities mainly include
industrial wastes generated during our production, including
hazardous wastes such as paint slag, duster cloth and machine
oil, and non-hazardous wastes such as papers and other domestic
wastes.

Hazardous wastes are categorised and stored according to
demand and recycled and treated by recognised professional waste
treatment institutions. Dyeing sludge reduces its water content and
volume through dehydration treatment, so as to give landfill more
capacity. Non-hazardous wastes such as domestic wastes will be
treated by municipal department uniformly.

In respect of office waste, apart from dumping general waste at
the designated place in line with the requirements of the property
management office of the office premise, we also categorise the
waste and engage a contractor to collect toner cartridge. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not generate any massive
electronic solid waste. In the event of requiring to dispose of
computer or electrical equipment, the Group will comply with
relevant regulations of the “WEEE" and deliver them to qualified
recyclers for proper handling.

As discussed above, wastes of the Group will be delivered to
recognised professional waste treatment institutions for recycling
and treatment without computing the weight and quantity of
wastes. However, the Group believed the quantity of wastes
generated during the course of the Group’s business operating
was at a reasonable level and also in conformity with the general
condition of the industry.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREBRE

Wastewater Discharge J5IKBER

Wastewater generated from the Group's operating processes ANE[E & FE B ELNBEKBIELBREKS -
includes dyeing wastewater. Wastewater will pass through storage  BEK E4BIF B ME R R4 BRAIGK
device and monitoring system, and then enter into sewage facilities, ~ BEIEU > XA BEMIBEL ZRIT - AIRF AKX
which will then be properly treated by professional institutions. To  z& MR 4 /57K AN B & W 5T & & B8 A MK
improve the effective use of water and reduce sewage, the Group BERBAR# e

will develop and consider suitable water circulation and reuse

system.
Emissions Unit Amounts
BErk 4 B gE

Greenhouse gas
BERE
— Scope 1 — Direct emissions
—HE1 - EEHER
— Fuel consumption (Machines) 45,481
—MREDERE (#88)
— Fuel consumption (Vehicles) 42,882
—MEDERE (R8)
COze
(Kilograms)
—8ILIREE
(F3=)

— Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions
— & [E2 - AEHEW
— Electricity consumption
—BER

713,196

— Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions

— & E3 - Hh A BEm
— Paper consumption 9,120
— KB
— Water consumption 30,559
— KB

ESEE (2R SRAT —B—hEEH 013
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B HERERRE

Use of Resources

The major resources and energy consumed during our production
process include water, electricity, coal, etc. Under the principle
of sustainable resources utilisation, we proactively improve our
operating efficiency and implement environmental measures, so
as to reduce the negative impact on the environment during the
operation process of our business. Under practical circumstances,
the Group will review its energy consumption pattern and emission
records from time to time, so as to enhance energy efficiency,
reduce carbon emission and save cost.

During the Reporting Period, our energy conservation and
emissions reduction measures include:

e Turning off all the air conditioners and lighting systems in the
office before leaving company;

e Replacing light pipes and other lamps with LED lighting;

e Maintaining indoor temperature at an appropriate degree
celsius in the office;

e Recycling paper products such as waste carton boxes and
printing papers and recycling toner and ink cartridges
according to the recycling plan;

e  Conducting regular maintenance of device and machine,
including production equipment and office electrical
equipment;

e Adopting digital printing to reduce the utilisation of water,
electricity, screen films and other resources.
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Data of resources consumption summarise as follow:

Types of resources consumption Unit
BEREEER B
Electricity kwh
E FEBF
Petrol-Vehicle liters
m RE nF
Water cubic
K K

Environment and Natural Resources

Enhancing Environmental Awareness

The Group actively enhances the environmental awareness
of its staff in addition to enhancing environmental measures,
including issuing of internal environmental guidance and sharing
of relevant environmental information in relation to green office.
In addition, we also arrange visiting Eco Expo Asia to obtain
the latest environmental technology information. Apart from
delivering information lectures, the Group will discuss and organise
environmental volunteers to participate in various environmental
protection activities at appropriate time in the future, so as
to strengthen cooperation with every non-governmental
environmental organisation and raise their awareness of
environmental issues.

B HEREBRE

BRBESBERE:
Amount
HE
893,130
35,568
30,559
RERRXRARER

BT T RARER AEERERREA S
THRRFREH BRELAMRRES] ARD
FRERNEFHAREEM BIHN RATR
BE2EiEco Expo Asia* NEJRITHRREBHRE
AolrTEMBES BENGERE KN&EH
EMAEBRREL 2RI\RFBHIAM
58 B X EF BN RRAMO S 1E WIRFATET
HIRRFE AN R
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B HERERRE

SOCIETY

Employment and Laour Practice

Employment

Employment, Remuneration and Benefit Policies

Employee is one of the key stakeholders affecting the sustainability
of our business, their contribution and support are valuable at all
times. As such, the Group formulated and implemented a set of
comprehensive human resource management system, which is
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
the PRC Labour Law, the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Labour
Law of Cambodia and other prevailing laws and regulations, and
according to the industrial benchmarks.

The Group provides all employees relevant work guideline
documents according to the human resources management
system, which clearly conveyed messages to employees at all levels
regarding the employment policy, work ethics, and occupational
safety and health guidelines of the Company in which our business
is operating. We also ensure employees know clearly their rights
and welfare while working for the Group in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations according to the system and thus
protect the rights of both parties.

The Group has formulated a competitive package of remuneration
and welfare system, and determined a reasonable employee
remuneration and welfare package according to their job nature,
qualifications and performance as well as market conditions, with
reference to their performance appraisal. They included basic
remuneration, over-time salary, employees welfare and rights
(such as statutory and additional annual leave, sick leave, various
allowances, severance payments and provision of dormitories).
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The Group pays mandatory provident fund and social insurance for
employees, provide commercial insurance, supplementary medical
benefits in accordance with applicable laws and industrial practice
of the region. The Group has implemented the “5-day-work week”
at its office in Hong Kong.

The Group also provides additional remuneration and welfare such
as evaluation bonus with reference to the employees’ performance,
financial results, market situation and other factors to attract and
retain talented employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not involved in any
event of breach of laws and regulations relating to employment,
which had a significant impact on the Group.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity Policy

Through the comprehensive human resources management system,
the Group ensures equal treatment to employees and no employee
will suffer from any discrimination or be deprived of any treatment
due to gender, age, region, nationality, race, religion, sexual
orientation, disability, marital status, or any other reasons.

The Group puts no specific gender requirement on recruitment,
but the Group notices the fact that the proportion of its female
staff is relatively high. The Group believes it is attributable to the
nature of business and the labour population structure in the region
where the business operates, which also reflects the effective
implementation of the Group’s equal opportunity policy.

The Group encourages internal promotion, and actively fosters tier-
based management in the future. In determining staff promotion,
the Group mainly considers individual performance, qualifications,
personal will and business conditions of the Company without
taking into account their gender and nationality, so as to ensure all
staff enjoys equal promotion opportunities.
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B HERERRE

Dismissal Policy

Under any reasonable circumstances where employees deliver
unsatisfactory performance, continue violating the codes of
the Company or the Company reorganises its human resources
structure and is required to dismiss employees, the Group will make
reasonable compensations to them in compliance with all relevant
Guides on the Employment Ordinance and in accordance with the
internal procedures and laws and terms of employment contract. In
the event of any special conditions, including dismissed employees
who are having doubt on related compensations and dismissal,
the Group may seek legal advice and ensure any dismissal will
not contravene with applicable laws and regulations. The relevant
provisions on termination of the employment relationship are set
out in the employment contracts of every employee.

Summary of employment data:

Unit
By
Total number of staff Number of staff
BI#Y A"
By gender
14 51l b 45
—Male
-3k
~remale Perientage
— & AA L
By employment type
1 8 35 51l Lt 45
—Full-time, permanent (Male)
—2BRERHAET(5M1)
—Full-time, permanent (Female)
—2BRAAET (&)
—Full-time, contract (Male) Percentage
Bt

—2BAEHNET (EH)
—Full-time, contract (Female)
—2BAEHNET ()
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Unit
B
Total number of staff Number of staff
EBIHAY A
New staff Number
HEET A
Turnover Number
BIH% A

During the Reporting Period, given the economic condition and
market competition, the Group determined to rent less factory area
and make adjustment to the production plan, and hence did not
renew the contracts with partial employees whose employment
contracts were due, resulting in a higher turnover rate. The Group
believed such situation was in line with the market condition, and
confirmed the Group had terminated the employment with such
employees in accordance with the applicable laws of employment
and terms of employment contract. The Group also confirmed there
was not any litigation or legal compensation resulting from the
termination of such employment.

B HEREBRE

Number
HE
71

353

848
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B HERERRE

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Working safety

We care about the health and well-being of our employees. Due to
the nature of our businesses, some employees have to operate a
variety of machines during daily work, which involves certain safety
risk. As such, the Group implemented various safety measures to
ensure the occupational safety of the employees.

We provide a safe working environment to our staff (including
inviting third party testing organisations to conduct test at the
workplace, equip offices and plants with sufficient first-aid
appliances and fire prevention equipment).

We established the Health and Safety Committee to formulate a
series of detailed work health and safety guidelines and they are
under stringent supervision and implementation. With reference
to industrial practices and regulations, these guidelines standardise
the processes at all levels and through many years of improvements
and revisions, and ensure that the health and safety of all staff
are being protected. We identify and assess the safety and health
risks annually on each position of the Company, strictly monitor
and evaluate all the risks exposed due to use of new materials and
mechanical equipment.

In order to enhance staff to attach more importance on
occupational health and safety, the Group offers staff the training
and safety meetings, and participating in fire drills held by
respective departments and institutions on a regular basis. The
benefits provided by the Group to its long-term employees include
medical, pension and other conventional insurances.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had no significant incident
of safety and work-related injury, and it had not been involved in
any event of breach of laws and regulations relating to safe working
environment and protection of employees from occupational
hazards; and no event involving the breach of health and safety
laws and regulations is identified.

Employees’ Welfare

The Group encourages our employees to participate in various
outdoor activities which are beneficial to their mind and body
during their spare time after daily work and pay attention to
their health, so as to promote their physical and psychological
development and help them strike a balance between life and work.
The Group organises and arranges all kinds of cultural, sports and
social activities to enhance interaction and understanding among
employees, maintain work and life balance and strengthen their
sense of belongings.

We also organise Christmas party, annual dinner or corporate
meeting during Christmas, New Year and other special occasions
to share the happiness with employees and reward staffs with
excellent performance.

Furthermore, certain employees, such as factory workers, are
on shift. We provide more considerate work arrangements for
employees when we develop weekly working hours and staff shifts,
and even consider the special needs of individual employees, such
as those who are new parents.
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B HERERRE

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Training Data

Number of participants

SEEII AR

Number of participants accounted for
the total number of employees

SEBEIABUERE TS

By gender
=1 Bl
- Male
— B
— Female

-

By gender
&1 Bl
- Male
~S
— Female

-

By positions
R AR
— Administrative staff
—fTBAE
— Others
—H At

By positions
R AR
— Administrative staff
—fTBAE
— Others
—H At

Unit
B

Number of staff

N

Percentage

Bt

Total hours
FEES

The average hours

5 R 8

Total hours
FEERS

The average hours

F 158 B
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The Group actively attracts and retains talents, and trains employees
who have the potential to become managers in the long run.
The Group provides professional training to improve quality,
qualification and skills of the employees for their growth through
a series of training programs. The Group also encourages staff to
discuss with management regarding their promotion and career
objectives.

The Group encourages the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and senior management to participate in training
regarding the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and corporate
governance from time to time, so as to improve the internal
control of the Company, and at the same time, we also encourage
accounting staff and company secretary to conduct a periodic
update on relevant professional knowledge.

In addition, the Group also provides various trainings on those
areas such as enterprise management, project management,
communication skills and presentation skills in relation to the
occupational development of staff.

Apart from training plans and arrangements, we encourage
internal promotion. We would provide support for employees
in participating on-job and professional trainings offered by the
Group, or other external trainings as well. The Group encourages
its employees to participate in external seminars to keep abreast of
changes and updates on areas of legal, and financial accounting
and reporting. The Group also encourages our Directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
by continuous professional development training, which includes
seminars and training, updates on regulatory requirements and
development and corporate governance practices.
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B HERERRE

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group's internal rules and labour system are made in strict
adherence to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Regulation on Labour Security Supervision
issued by the State Council of the PRC and the Labour Law
of Cambodia and by reference to international standards. All
recruitment processes and promotion activities are stringently
implemented and supervised according to the human resource
management system of the Group.

The codes of conducts are clearly set out in all employment
contracts and staff codes of the Group. The conducts of all
employees are under a strict supervision to avoid non-compliance
incidents like employment of child and forced labour. In order to
avoid illegal employment of child and forced labour, the Human
Resources Department of the Group requires job seekers to provide
valid identification before confirming employment to ensure that
applicants can be employed in accordance with the law.

The Group will conduct investigations, punishment or dismissal to
relevant employees immediately when any illegal behavior is being
discovered. If necessary, the Group will further improve the labour
mechanism against illegal behaviors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no child or forced
labour.
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OPERATION PRACTICE

Supply Chain Management

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing of swimwear and
garment sectors for many years and has established a good
reputation in the industry and long-term mutual trust relationship
with its major suppliers. The Group develops a set of comprehensive
internal purchasing system in accordance with applicable laws and
standards in the PRC, Hong Kong as well as Cambodia. During
the Reporting Period, the suppliers of the Group are mainly raw
materials (mainly fabrics) suppliers and production equipment
suppliers from the PRC, Europe, Cambodia and Hong Kong.

The Group pays great attention to suppliers’ integrity and conduct
due diligence on suppliers to ensure that suppliers are having good
operational record in the past without any material violation or
any breach of commercial morality. Currently, we mainly rely on
individual suppliers to provide raw materials. Those suppliers have
undergone fair and rigorous supplier selection process, possess
reliable operation records and are able to continuously provide us
materials at a price which are competitive to the Group. Although
these suppliers have good past performance, the Group looks for
appropriate new suppliers regularly for risk control purpose.

After providing raw materials to the Group, regardless of
whether they are new or old suppliers, the Group will conduct
assessment on suppliers in terms of contract fulfilment according
to internal guidelines and check if our suppliers have fulfilled their
responsibilities under the procurement contracts, provide relevant
information reports timely and ensure that the raw materials
supplied have met the Group’s requirements. If any material issue
occurs or exists, the Group will change suppliers.
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B HERERRE

Furthermore, the Group operates on a sustainable development
basis. It considers and balances the interests of stakeholders where
practicable. Therefore, as one of the critical links in the supply chain
management, the Group actively communicates with suppliers to
enable them to understand the Group’s philosophy and values, and
appropriately reviews the implementation of policies and measures
of suppliers in relation to environmental protection.

PRODUCT LIABILITY
Product quality

The customers of the Group are mainly branded swimwear and
garment enterprises in the European markets. The Group attaches
great importance to products’ quality and reputation, and actively
assures products and services quality through internal control. The
Group has already set up comprehensive internal quality inspection
system to ensure products are meeting the quality requirements.

The quality inspection system of the Group mainly includes as
follow:

i. Periodic workplace inspection, check documentations
and inspect raw materials quality to ensure they meet
documentation requirements and provide inspection reports;

i. Check production process and ensure technology used is
accurate with sound operation of production equipment;

iii. Check whether packaging such as carton boxes, plastic bags

and price tags are correct according to documentations and
ensure meeting customers’ requirements upon delivery;
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iv. ~Conduct product quality inspection to ensure that size,
wordings, colour and printing of the finished products
are manufactured exactly according to the customers’
requirements;

v.  Itis subject to signatory and stamping by supplier’s executives
after the aforementioned inspection.

The Group requires its staff to observe the above quality inspection
system as well as all other working guidelines to ensure products
meet the quality requirements. Save as guidelines and handbooks,
we also arrange relevant trainings for staff to improve their
professional technological skills from time to time.

During the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from our customers arising from the quality issues of the Group's
products.

Communication with customers

The Group maintains and reviews different communication
channels with customers to obtain customer feedback, understand
customer need and handle customer complaints timely, whereby
investigation on customer complaints and services will be
conducted and improve our customer service system.

Policies of privacy

We hardly get access to the personal information of our customers
or confidential data of enterprises in the ordinary course of
business, however, we attach great attention to the protection of
privacy and intellectual property. We ensure that all the business
data of our customers which may be accessible will be properly
dealt with by our staff and will not be used or leaked without
authorisation.
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B HERERRE

Advertising and Labelling

The Group made no large-scale propaganda for our products.
Our sales mainly rely on the long-term stable business relationship
with existing customers and sales personnel’s introduction. The
description of our products and statements from sales personnel
and product labels ensure our compliance with the Advertisement
Law of the PRC (P 2E A R £ MBIEEE) , the Interim Measures
for the Administration of Internet Advertisement ( & B 48 /& & &
EE{79#%) and other applicable laws and regulations governing
advertising and labeling enacted by the country, regions or industry
associations and there is no exaggeration or untruth.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all the
laws and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labeling and privacy matters in respect of the products and services
provided, which had a significant impact on the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group strictly complies with applicable anti-corruption laws
and moral standards. During the Reporting Period, there was no
case of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
lodged against the Group or our employees.

The Group has formulated the convention against corruption and
a set of comprehensive anti-corruption and fraudulent mechanism
pinpointing at the whole supply chain from upstream suppliers to
downstream end-customers, as well as the capital market operation
of investors, shareholders and institutions. The Group provides
periodic anti-corruption training and information to employees
to raise their anti-corruption awareness, thereby ensuring
every employee is in compliance with local rules and has good
professional conduct.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has engaged an independent internal control and risk
advisory team, which has assisted in monitoring the corporate
governance of the Group and in providing an objective assessment
to the Board of Directors on whether a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated by management. The Group
also engaged independent auditor to conduct external audit, in
order to prevent and control the fraud or wrongdoings within the
Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not identified
any corruption or fraud event. The Group will review the
implementation of respective systems periodically and devote more
resources to improve the mechanism if necessary.

Whistle-blowing policy

We carry out whistle-blowing system to allow anonymous
reporting. If a reporting case is received (whether from internal
or external), the Group will arrange a senior executive to conduct
investigation and is assisted by relevant internal audit, human
resources and legal functional departments. The investigation
results will be reported to senior management. In the event of any
illegal activities by any employee, the Group will notify the relevant
law enforcement agencies and assist them in the investigation.
Throughout the reporting and investigation process, the Group
undertakes to protect the identity of the person whistleblowing the
case.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERRE

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group places importance on social responsibility of an
enterprise, upholds the philosophy of “giving back to society where
we take from”, and encourages employees’ awareness of caring for

the community and helping each other.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively repays to society,
and participates in various community activities such as flagselling
day and also provides leave for voluntary services. We hope to
raise employees’ community awareness through organising or
participating in such kind of community activities to let them
contributing back the community practically, promote their care
and help the needed. We also encourage employees to share
proactively after the activities, influence others to participate more
volunteer activities and establish proper values.

The Group will continue to cooperate with more organisations

and institutions and offer them more support to make greater
contributions to the society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREBRE

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX EBBERZFERAR (RE -HERE

AW EES) R

Subject areas Content Section in this ESG Report
FTEHE RE RESGHR & EH

A. Environmental

AEBE

A1 Emissions

ATEER S

General disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Environmental

— 1. Emissions

— R E

BRABERIAZEREHER MAKRT NS EERESE
BEYNELSHERRLETHETABERZENHE
EREROINE R

RIR
— 1.5

A2 Use of resources

A2ERERA
General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, | Environmental
water and other raw materials. — 2. Use of resources
— R EE BRERER (BREREIR K REMERM ) B BR RIR
—2.BR{EH

A3 Environment and natural resource

ABRERRRER

General disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

Environmental
— 3. Environment and
natural resource

— R

MEETABRRERRABEREREAZENHHE

RIR
—BRELRRER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERRE

Subject areas Content Section in this ESG Report
TRHEE B FESGHREEH

B. Social

B.ALEEE

Employment and Labour Practices

BREREIER

B1 Employment

B1{EE

General disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Employment and
Labour Practices
— 1. Employment

— R E

BREF L E BRELET TIERE - RA FEKE -
ZIft R IA R B A8 KA M AR « 8 5 31T
ABEAZENBBERZRBABINER -

BERLSTIER
—1EE

B2 Health and safety

B2EREZ &

General disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

Employment and
Labour Practices
— 2. Health and safety

— MK ER

FRRHZE2THEREAMREREREBEBEMEZTOBEK
REBTHETABEARENEREIRRRIINER -

BENETER
—2FEETE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREBRE

Subject areas Content Section in this ESG Report
TEEHE R&E FESGH & EH

B3 Development and training

B3 & & 3% 5l

General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

Employment and
Labour Practices

— 3. Development and
training

— R E

BRARITHE B E1T T IERE A A 38 M b BE e BUR B e sl 558
FEE

BRLREIER
—3. B R LE

B4 Labour standards

B4%5 T XAl

General disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

Employment and
Labour Practices
— 4. Labour standards

— R

ARBLEETRRASTORE  RETHETATEAY
ZHIRARRATIER -

EEESBTER
—4 8 TIRE

Operating practices

“EEH

B5 Supply chain management

B5HEEEE

General disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

Operating practices
— Supply chain management
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERERRE

Subject areas Content Section in this ESG Report
TRHEE B FESGHREEH

B6 Product responsibility

B6E mEE

General disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.

Operating practices
— Product responsibility

—MRIXER

ERfMREERMRBNRFEERZE B REALES
HARBRIDENBR  METHETABERZENHEH
ERNMBOINE R

LS

|
R i
=]
o =
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v
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B7 Anti-corruption

BIRES

General disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Operating practices
— Anti-corruption

— MR R BRAMIEBE R MFERARENER LB HET | 2&EIED
ABEAZENRBEERLBOHNER - -REF

Community

HE

B8 Community Investment

B8 BIRE

General disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs | Community

of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

— Community investment

—MRIXEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ISSUE OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 8 November 2017, the Company and Wide Select Investments
Limited (the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe and the
Company agreed to allot and issue a total of 700,000,000 new
shares at the price of HK$0.10 per share (the “Subscription”).
The Subscription was completed on 30 November 2017. The
premium on the issue of shares, amounting to approximately
HK$62,890,000, net of share issue expenses, was credited to the
Company's share premium account. The shares ranked pari passu in
all respects with the ordinary shares of the Company in issue of the
date of allotment.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 30 June 2019 (the “Year"), loss attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately HK$3,898,000.
Comparing to loss attributable to owners of the Company for
year ended 30 June 2018 of approximately HK$138,268,000, the
decrease in loss attributable to the owners of the Company was
mainly attributable to (i) decrease in gross loss of approximately
HK$2,353,000 (2018: HK$39,322,000); (ii) no impairment of
goodwill (2018: HK$78,064,000) made for swimwear cash-
generating unit ("CGU") and garment and swimwear CGU; (iii)
decrease in impairment of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$1,201,000 (2018: HK$6,789,000); (iv) reverse
of allowance for trade and other receivables to approximately
HK$14,615,000 (2018: allowance HK$19,641,000); and (v)
increase in other income HK$6,578,000 (2018: HK$2,607,000);
and partially set off by (i) increase in administrative expenses,
HK$25,971,000 (2018: HK$22,035,000); (i) decrease in income tax
credit HK$782,000 (2018: HK$5,954,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

Revenue and Gross (Loss)/Profit

For the Year, the Group's total revenue and gross loss were
approximately HK$131,778,000 and HK$2,353,000 respectively,
as comparing to approximately HK$156,572,000 and gross loss
HK$39,322,000 respectively for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Details of the decrease in total revenue and decrease in gross loss
are discussed below:

Manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and
garment products (“Swimwear and garment segment”)

The revenue generated from Swimwear and garment segment
for the Year was approximately HK$44,721,000 (2018:
HK$63,209,000). Gross loss for the Year was approximately
HK$6,888,000 (2018: HK$42,860,000). Gross loss for the Year was
15.40% (2018: gross loss ratio of 67.81%). Decrease in revenue
was mainly due to the decrease in garment products orders.
Decrease in gross loss for the Year was mainly due to decrease in
labour cost and no allowance for inventories, as compared with the
corresponding period in 2018.

Trading and on-line shopping related services (“Trading and
media related segment”)

The revenue generated from Trading and on-line shopping related
segment for the Year was approximately HK$86,637,000 (2018:
HK$93,093,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$4,115,000 (2018: HK$3,268,000). Gross profit ratio for the
Year was 4.75% (2018: 3.51%). The increase of gross profit was
due to increase in revenue from higher profit margin segment of
trading of second-hand mobile phones.

036 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019

WARE (18),F

RAFEE AEBEZBWARFEEBDRK A
#131,778,0007T K& 7 #2,353,0007T * M & &
—E- N\FEXRNAZTAHLFEEDRN BB
156,572,0007T & E18 %5 #39,322,0007T °

AR D R BB 2 FERAR T

LtEREBESEKXERBREERD ([KERKRE
7 &81)

REBXERREDHEEEZCKRAN BB
44,721,000 (= — )\ 4 : 5 ¥63,209,000
JL) o ANFE 2 EBK BB %6,888,0007T (=F
— N\ : %1#42,860,0007T) - AFE 2 EER
15.40% (ZZF—\F: EEEX67.81%) - WA
WAL EERRREERFTER DR RNF
EZEBRLDDIEZEHARLEINAR-Z—/N\
FRE TR ETERERTEC

ESRELBYERBYE ([ESRIREHEHES
E8J/)

AEEBESRMPLEEMHRBBELE 2K
A4 575 #88,637,000 (— T — NF: B
#93,093,0007T) - AFE 2 EMHN BB
4,115,000t (=ZF — \F : £ %3,268,000
TL) o AFEZEFERELTIS% (ZT—N\F:
351%) - EFEMIBHREE-_FFHES
FEF R IPEEZIWAEMATE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Money lending business (“Money lending segment”)

The revenue generated from Money lending segment for the Year
was approximately HK$420,000 (2018: HK$270,000). Gross profit
for the Year was approximately HK$420,000 (2018: HK$270,000).
Gross profit ratio for the Year was 100% (2018: 100%),).

OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group maintained an effective cost measures
in controlling the cost structure of its operations. Besides, the
Group will be extremely prudent in the expansion of its operations
in an organic manner. We also believe that it is of the Group’s best
interest to explore different sources of income while still maintains
an effective and efficient overhead structure for our supporting
departments in each of the business segments under operation.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$110,468,000 (2018: HK$134,785,000). As at 30 June 2019,
the Group had no short term borrowings (2018: HK$26,044,000).
The decrease of total borrowings was mainly due to capitalization
of the shareholders loan of Ricotex during the Year. As at 30 June
2019, the Group had bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$47,701,000 (2018: HK$57,853,000). The Group has a current
ratio of approximately 4.33 comparing to that of 2.34 as at 30
June 2018. As at 30 June 2019, the Group's gearing ratio of
-27% (2018: -7%) was calculated as net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is calculated as total liabilities (including current
and non-current liabilities as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
represents the equity as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Subscription was completed and shares were issued on 30
November 2017. The premium on the issue of shares, amounting
to approximately HK$62,890,000, net of share issue expenses, was
credited to the Company'’s share premium account.

All proceeds have been utilised by the Group as to (a) approximately
HK$30 million as working capital for its swimwear and garment
business including but not limited to purchase of raw materials,
rental, wages and other administrative expenses; (b) approximately
HK$30 million as working capital for its trading business including
but not limited to purchase of inventories; and (c) approximately
HK$9.8 million as general working capital of the Group including
administrative expenses, professional fees and general corporate
expenses. Such use was in accordance with the intended use are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 10 April 2018.

The Company has not conducted any equity fund raising activities
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group's financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our
Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to our Group or which
may not be material now but could be material in the future:

1. Reliance on a small number of key suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers, which accounted for 65%
(2018: 67%) of the Group's total purchases, There is no
assurance that these major suppliers shall continue to provide
the goods to us at price acceptable to our Group. In the
event that our Group were unable to retain these suppliers,
or procure replacement suppliers, our business, results of
operations, profitability and liquidity might be adversely
affected. However, the Group has established strong business
relationship with these major suppliers.

2. Reliance on a small number of key customers

The Group's five largest customers, which accounted for
71% (2018: 72%) of the Group’s total revenue. There is no
assurance that major customers will continue to conduct
business with us. In the event that major customers materially
reduce their purchase orders with the Group or cease to
conduct business with the Group and the Group fails to obtain
a comparable level of purchase orders from new customers,
the Group's business, result of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected. Customer satisfaction
with our products has a profound effects on our profitability.
To provide good quality services to our customers, our Group is
in constant communication with our customers and potential
customers to uncover and create customer needs and help
customers make informed decision.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN WD

3. Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group business transactions, assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars, of which the Group's exposure to foreign
exchange risk is considered as limited. During the Year, the
Group did not carry out any hedging activity against foreign
currency risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of
foreign currencies against Renminbi may have a financial
impact on the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging
tools, if available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

4. Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of our
Group would be submitted to the Board of Directors.

As at 30 June 2019, issued and fully paid share capital of the
Company included (a) 6,828,772,313 (2018: 6,803,772,313)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each; (b) 1,083,333,333 convertible
non-voting preference shares (“CPS”) (2018: 1,103,333,333) of
HK$0.15 each; and (c) 204,100,000 (2018: 204,100,000) series
B convertible non-voting preference shares (“Series B CPS"”) of
HK$0.16 each. Pursuant to the terms of the CPS and Series B CPS,
the conversion prices of the outstanding CPS and Series B CPS
were adjusted from HK$0.65 and HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.13
and HK$0.032 per share respectively as a result of completion of
the rights issue, and further adjusted to HK$0.12 and HK$0.030
per share respectively as a result of completion of the placing and
subscription on 14 October 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HEDGING POLICY

The Group does not have any material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange or interest rates. Therefore, no hedging measures have
been taken at present.

CREDIT POLICY

The credit terms given to customers are generally based on the
financial strengths of individual customers. The Group generally
allows an average credit term of 14 to 90 days to its trade
customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had 711 full time employees
compared with that of 1,206 in the previous financial year. The
staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were approximately
HK$33,397,000 (2018: HK$55,735,000). The Group offers a
comprehensive remuneration package and benefits to its full time
employees in compliance with the regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the Cambodia respectively, including medical scheme,
provident fund or retirement fund. In addition, the Group adopts
a share option scheme for eligible employees (including Directors)
and consultants to provide incentives to participants for their
contributions and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS
The Group has pledged bank deposits of approximately

HK$361,000 (2018: HK$434,000) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROSPECT

For the Swimwear and garment segment, due to the keen
competition in the market, the number of orders of high-end
swimwear from existing customers decreased in this year. In view of
the above, we are actively seeking new business opportunities with
new customers and new products. Nevertheless we shall continue
with our strategy of expanding customer base and product mix with
the aim to improve performance of this segment in the coming year.
Also, our Group continues to closely monitor and control cost in
order to push up the gross profit margin of Swimwear and garment
segment.

For the Trading and on-line shopping related segment, it mainly
represented trading of second-hand mobile phones, cameras and
electronic parts business. The demand from customers was stable
and we would put more resources to develop this segment in the
coming year. The Company intends to expand its existing trading
business of second-hand mobile phones into assisting mobile
phone wholesalers and mobile phone network operators to sell
second-hand mobile phones through online platform globally. Our
Group will continue to seek and explore other business opportunity
for the Trading and on-line shopping related segment.

In order to diversify our business, the Group obtained a Money
Lenders Licence in July 2017 and started a new business of money
lending in August 2017.

The management of the Group continues to formulate its business
strategies to optimise the use of its operating and financial
resources. It will consider to diversify its operations including but
not limited to invest in financial instruments in order to ensure
cash availability through managing cash on hand to best meet the
Group's cash and liquidity needs to manage risk.

The Group will also consider to reorganise the non-performing

business segments including but not limited to the disposal or
downsizing of the non-performing business segments.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
submit their report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the year ended 30 June 2019 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s operations and assets are located in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China and the Kingdom of Cambodia.
An analysis of the Group's performance for the Year by business
segments and consolidated revenue and non-current assets of the
Group by geographical segments are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 84 to 85 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2018:
Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The business review of the Group for the Year is provided in the

section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 211 and
212 of the annual report.

SHARES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

Details of share issued during the Year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTIVE RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of
changes in equity respectively.

The Company's reserves available for distribution comprise the
share premium account, less accumulated losses.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

There are no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Group during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association (the “Articles”) and the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Pledge of assets and particulars of borrowings of the Group as at
30 June 2019 are set out in notes 24 and 26 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the warrants subscription, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan

(appointed on 25 February 2019)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (resigned on 25 February 2019)
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

In accordance with the Articles, Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan and Dr. Lee
Chung Mong, John shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. All
the retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the Annual General Meeting.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”), the changes in information of Directors
of the Company subsequent to the date of the 2018 Annual Report
required to be disclosed were (i) the updated biographic details of
the Directors set out on pages 6 to 7 of the annual report; and (ii)
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, resigned as an independent Non-executive
Director of Great Wall Belt & Road Holdings Limited, which formerly
known as e-Kong Group Limited and effective from 31 December
2018. Also, he resigned as an Independent Non-executive Directors
of On Real International Holdings Limited, effective from 20
September 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) confirmed that the Company
has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers that
they are independent under Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS

Save for contracts amongst group companies, no other
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to which
the Company'’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company and the Director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30 June 2019, none of the directors and chief executives
of the Company has any interests or short position in the shares
("Share”), underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standards of dealings by
Directors of the Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Substantial shareholders interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2019, other than the interests of a Director or
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading
"Directors” and chief executive's interests and/or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any specified undertaking of the Company or any other associated
corporation” above, the interests and short positions of persons in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares
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percentage of

Type of issued share
Name of shareholder Number of shares interests capital (%)
HEBITRAE
BEHESEEB ROEEB ERER BB D (%)
(Note 1)
(Htat1)
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph 1,490,741,995 Corporate 21.83%
(Note 2)
BERESE 1,490,741,995 A7
(Htit2)
JL Investments Capital Limited 1,416,741,995 Beneficial 20.75%
JL Investments Capital Limited 1,416,741,995 B
Big Good Management Limited 1,350,533,845 Beneficial 19.78%
("Big Good")
Big Good Management Limited 1,350,533,845 B

(IBig Good )
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Name of shareholder Number of shares
BRER BB B3 & E
Mr. Ma Hoi Cheuk (“Mr. Ma") 1,350,533,845

(Note 3)
Bl EEE(THxE]) 1,350,533,845

(K1:23)
Wide Select Investments Limited 916,420,000

("Wide Select™)

Wide Select Investments Limited 916,420,000

([wide Select J)

Mr. Lee Yim (“Mr. Lee") 916,420,000
(Note 4)
e ([FEE]) 916,420,000
(K1it4)
Notes:

1. The percentage of issued share capital had been arrived at on the
basis of a total of 6,828,772,313 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2019.

2. These shares are held as to 74,000,000 shares by Mr. Lau personally
and as to 1,416,741,995 shares by JL Investments Capital Limited
("JL Investments”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau. Mr. Lau is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by JL Investments.

3. Big Good is wholly-owned by Mr. Ma who is deemed to be
interested in underlying shares held by Big Good.

4. Wide Select is wholly-owned by Mr. Lee who is deemed to be
interested in underlying shares held by Wide Select.
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(iij) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Name of shareholder

BREREE BB

Big Good

Big Good

Mr. Ma

BJEE

Notes:

1. see Note 1 on page 50.

2. see Note 3 on page 50.

Number of shares

R BE

2,417,699,999
(Note 3 & 4)
2,417,699,999
(K17#3%4)

2,417,699,999
(Note 2)
2,417,699,999
(BtaE2)

3. Big Good was the holder of 1,063,333,333 convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.15 each which have no voting rights and

are convertible into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the terms of the

convertible non-voting preference shares, the conversion price of

the outstanding convertible non-voting preference shares has been

adjusted from HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.12 per share immediately

after 15 July 2016 as a result of completion of the subscription and

placing on 14 October 2016.
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4. Big Good was also the holder of 204,100,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each which have no voting
rights and are convertible into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the
terms of the series B convertible non-voting preference shares, the
conversion price of the outstanding series B convertible non-voting
preference shares had been adjusted from HK$0.032 to HK$0.030
per share immediately after 15 July 2016 as a result of completion of
the subscription and placing on 14 October 2016.

(iii) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of

equity derivatives of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions” below in this
Director’s Report, there was no contract of significant between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiary during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, no connected
transactions were entered into between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and a connected person as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public
throughout the Year and up to the date of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s revenue and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is

as follows:

The largest customer SYNESS

Five largest customers in aggregate ARBEFEE
The largest supplier BAHER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate hREEE ST

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their respective
associates and any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
staff, and contributes to the community in which we conduct our
business and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety are the most pressing concern across our business
operations. The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Conservation of the environment is a key focus for the Group.
The Group complies with environmental legislation, encourages
environmental protection and promotes environmental protection
awareness to all employees of the Group.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to participating in community events from
time to time, and to the improvement of community well-being and
social services. The Group supports and encourages staffs to actively
participate in a wide range of charitable events outside working
hours, to raise awareness and concern for the community, and to
inspire more people to take part in serving the community in order
to provide loving care and financial assistance to the needy.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted compliance and risk management
policies and procedures, and members of the senior management
are delegated with the continuing responsibility to monitor
adherence and compliance with all significant legal and regulatory
requirements.
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As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees is one of the key stakeholders who affected the
sustainability of our business, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group believes that our people are critical
success factors to the Group’s competitiveness in the market.
As such, the Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Share options are provided to retain
loyal employees for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in external
seminars to keep abreast of changes and updates on areas of
legal, compliance and financial accounting and reporting. Through
these types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced. The Company also
encourages continuous professional development training for the
Directors and senior management to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars and training, updates
on regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by the Directors and officers of the Company is
currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of, as at 30 June 2019, any business or
interest of each Director, substantial shareholder and management
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopts a dividend policy (the”Dividend Policy”)
during the year, according to the Dividend Policy, when determining
whether to declare any dividend in the future and the amount of
dividend to be declared, the Board shall take into account, included
but not limited to:

(i) the Group's liquidity position and future commitments; (ii)
the Group’s actual and expected financial performance; (iii) the
Group's business operation strategy, including expected working
capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans; (iv) the general economic conditions and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company; (v) retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company; (vi) any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders; and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance for the Company. During the Year, the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A.4.1 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at Annual General Meeting of the Company in line with the
Company's Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the Company'’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited. Elite Partners CPA Limited
was appointed as auditor of the Company on 11 July 2019
following the resignation of RSM Nelson Wheeler on 11 July 2019.
A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chun Fat, George
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance for the Company. During
the year ended 30 June 2019 (the “Year”), the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) except provisions A.4.1 of the CG Code
as detailed below:

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are not
appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and re-
election at Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company in
line with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure the Company'’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

05 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019

TEERER

EFTe([EZ2)BNALARRAGERESKE
ZEhEER RBE_ZT—NAF~A=Z1+AHIE
FE([AFE]R ARBCETEEHER
SFBERARGEME SR EMR A ([GEM_ET
Al 1) Bisg15FE 2 R E ATl ([REEISSF
A1) - EDEERTRAIFEALUERRIN 1B R
X

SFRR X AL 1R

RIBEFEEATRZTRMREA LR FEH
TEFERUSERMZME IARRERE R
Bl B IFAITESUINS ERBERE - BA
BIFARR ZABERAR (TR ERRE
BRRAFA® (IRREFAE]) LRERE
SE o Bt AR R AT REUE $915 He A REAR AR
NEZEEERERTNERBRERTRIPTH
LI °



THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group'’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performances. Daily operations and execution are delegated
to management. The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees;

(d) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Executive Directors are responsible for running the Group and
executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The Independent
Non-executive Directors provide the Group with a wide range of
expertise and experience, to ensure that the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
and that all issues are considered in an objective manner.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group's
affairs. The Board believes that the balance between Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
Shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors act in the best interest of the
Company and that the current Board size is adequate for its present
operations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board comprises five members and their positions, as at the
date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management's
Biographies” on pages 6 to 7 of the annual report for the Year.
All Directors have exercised due care, skill and diligence and
fulfilled fiduciary duties to all the significant issues of the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Each Executive
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to hold
his position in order to ensure that his fiduciary duties have been
carried out in an efficient and effective manner. Save as disclosed,
none of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to

each other in any circumstances.
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The Board meets at least four times each year and more frequently
as the needs of the business demand. The Board held 19 board
meetings and 1 general meeting for the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Board members are as follows:
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Attendance
HE R
Board General
meetings meetings
Executive Directors HITES EEEE3 BREXE
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George DR E 19/19 11
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan RS+ (R=ZFE—NF N/A
(Appointed on 25 February 2019) — A=+ EHEZE) 5/5 TER
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph EREE (R=ZF—NF
(Resigned on 25 February 2019) ZAZ=1+AHAFF) 14/14 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHITES
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXEL 8/19 11
Mr. Tam Wing Kin Bt 8/19 11
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex IS 8/19 171

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all
Directors for inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and approved as soon as practicable
after the board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing Directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nomination
Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used
in board meetings for committee meetings.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities insurance cover in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional
development programme to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company. During the Year, the Company arranged
training on compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, to the Directors
and senior management for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. The
Company Secretary maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year are
as follows:

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph 2T REAE
(Resigned on 25 February 2019) (R=ZFE—NF

—H -+ A HEHE)

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George DA E
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan PREZ S T+
(Appointed on 25 February 2019) (RZFE—NF
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BEHEEMANERESE Lim MIEBRER
RERBE -BHNEERNBIIFRTESS
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mEZ T BB MERLZEE 2H%E8e
FRARNEFEERNERERMEF-
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ARREASNERTHRHEENEE RS A
BEERR TR
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REFHBERRARRERZREERE T
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BEXREANEFREITREE 2 M R IEE - A7
WERTFEF2 MBI ZTHK -EFENEAFE
NG 2 ENT :

Attending seminar Reading materials

relevant to relevant to
corporate corporate
governance, governance,

laws, listing rules
and regulations
HEEBLEEER -
EE - EWRA

laws, listing rules
and regulations
REEELEESR -

@ . EhRa)

A1 mHEEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors &M IFHTEE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BERREEE
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SRS
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In order to protect the interest of the Shareholders, the Company
appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors with relevant
and sufficient experience and qualification to perform their duties.
One of the three Independent Non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirement of
the GEM Listing Rules. During the Year, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules of 5.06 relating to have
at least one-third in number of its Board members comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors. The three Independent Non-
executive Directors declared and confirmed with the Company
on an annual basis of their independency with the Group in
accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has
assessed and concluded that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent in appearance and in substance in view
of the definition of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-
executive Directors do not hold any office with any connected
parties of the Company or have any financial interests other
than those Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the Chairman and the CEO should be separate and performed
by different individuals to ensure a balance of power and authority
so that power is not concentrated in any one individual. Mr. Lau
Chun Fat, George, the executive Director, is the Chairman and is
responsible for the leadership of the Board while Ms. Chan Hiu
Kwan, the executive Director, is the CEO and is responsible for
managing the Group's business and overall operations.
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The Chairman of the Company has held one private meeting with
all Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss major events or
issues which incurred during the Year and the Company's business
plan to be developed in the coming year. The Board believed that
Independent Non-executive Directors could through this private
meeting voice out their concerns on financial aspect after discussed
major events or issues and provided constructive advice on the
direction of the Company'’s future development.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT

The procedures of appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors are published in the Articles of the Company. The
procedures for Shareholders to propose any person to become a
Director of the Company are published on the Company’s website.

Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms, subject to re-election. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles, Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan and
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John shall retire at the AGM. All the
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
Year.

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the code of conduct by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Compensation Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Compensation Committee comprises a majority
members of Independent Non-executive Directors.

At 30 June 2019, the Compensation Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John,
Mr. Tam Wing Kin, Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex and one Executive
Director, Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Compensation Committee proposed to the Chairman relating
to the remuneration of Executive Directors. The Compensation
Committee also recommended to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Director’s fee payable to him is determined by making reference
to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market conditions, as approved by the Board in accordance with
the Company’s remuneration policy pursuant to the authority given
by the Shareholders. No Director has taken part in setting his own
remuneration. Meetings of the Compensation Committee shall be
held at least once a year.

The Compensation Committee held 2 meetings during the Year.
Details of the attendance of the Compensation Committee
meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaRiEE A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex R e

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan (Appointed on 25 February 2019)
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Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
(Resigned on 25 February 2019)

During the Year, there was two meetings held by the Compensation
Committee to review the Group's term of reference for the
Compensation Committee and review all Directors’ remuneration.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members of
senior management by band for the Year are disclosed in notes
15(a) and 14(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee in
2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations, appointment
of Directors and Board succession. The Nomination Committee
selects candidates for directorship with reference to the board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) and the candidate’s professional
knowledge, industry experience, personal ethics and integrity, and
time commitments. During the selection process, the Nomination
Committee may consider referrals or engage external recruitments
professionals when necessary.

The Board has adopted a Policy in August 2013 which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of this Policy and will from time to time review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee comprises at least three members, the
majority of whom shall be Independent Non-executive Directors.
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Ms. Chan
Hiu Kwan, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr.
Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the Chairman
of the Committee. Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be
held at least once a year.
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The Nomination Committee held 2 meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting is as
follows:

Committee members Z8ERE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin mREE A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex TSR e

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan (Appointed on 25 February 2019)

RELLL (R=ZF-NF
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REZEENAFENERTRASZE -EH
RAZBEEERINEBHEREFBENOT

Attendance

R B

2/2
2/2
2/2
N/A i A

AT HEZF)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
(Resigned on 25 February 2019)

During the Year, there was two meeting held by the Nomination
Committee to review the size and composition of the Board and the
Group's term of reference for the Nomination Committee.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a Finance Committee with written terms
of reference to review and approve banking facilities to be granted
or issued by the Company, provision of corporate guarantees by
the Company for its subsidiaries and opening of bank or securities
related accounts. The Finance Committee comprises at least three
members. The current members of the Finance Committee are Mr.
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Finance Committee held 3 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Finance Committee meeting is as follows:

Committee members ZE8RE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHEKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin R
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex RN S

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan (Appointed on 25 February 2019)
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H R B

3/3
3/3
3/3
N/A

A+ AHEZF)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
(Resigned on 25 February 2019)

During the Year, there were three meetings held by the Finance
Committee to review and approve the banking facilities of the
Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee is to communicate with the management
of the Company from time to time, including but not limited to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company, the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Company. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for considering the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and reviewing
the impairment to its independency with any non-audit services
performed by the external auditor.

As at the date of this report, the members of Audit Committee,
which are all Independent Non-executive Directors, are Dr. Lee
Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man,
Alex. Mr. Tam Wing Kin is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

gKE

Committee members ZE8

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BN e

During the Year, there were six meetings held by the Audit
Committee (i) to review the Company’s audited annual results for
the financial year ended 30 June 2018, unaudited first quarterly
results for the three months ended 30 September 2018, unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2018 and
unaudited third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
March 2019; (ii) to review the Group’s internal control system;
and (iii) to review the Group’s term of reference for the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION ZE BT &

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and ~ RANEE - GLA R G SMNEZX AT IR HE& K IE
non-audit services provided by the Company’s external auditor is EBZEREZ BN, TEMM S EES I T
set out below:

HK$°000
JBETF T
Types of services AR 75 1E 4R
Audit services EZHRTE 460
COMPANY SECRETARY NAME

The Company Secretary has been a full time employee who has RRAWME—HERAMARAEH 2 2BES -
knowledge of the Company's affair. The Company Secretary of the AR R ZARMELRES L L FR-T——
Company is Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, who is engaged and appointedby FN\AZBAEEZSZELEZT -RAFE K
the Board on 3 August 2011. For the Year, the Company Secretary ARIZ A B MERRABEEEIT T LRIS/NEZ
of the Company confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours ~ #E#8 H 255

of relevant professional training.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group's performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 and 83.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk

management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.
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The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle all significant risks associated with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.

The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each risk has been assessed
and prioritised based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follow:

e  Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

e Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

e  Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are design to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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During the Year, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm
to undertake the internal audit function to ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group. No significant deficiency and weakness on the
internal control system has been identified by the external advisory
firm for the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company'’s Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for put forward a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
resolutions at general meetings under the Company’s Articles or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. As regard to the procedure
for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures made available under the “Corporate Information”
section (Procedures to propose director) of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board in

writing through the Company Secretary of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Address: Unit B, 5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building,
1 Wing Ming Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2520 6020

Fax: (852) 2520 6086

Email: admin@luxey.com.hk

The Company Secretary of the Company shall forward the
Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board, where appropriate to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the Year.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information
to Shareholders in a timely manner. The Company also recognises
that people other than Shareholders, such as potential investors
and the investment community generally may have an interest in
information about the Company. Annual, quarterly and interim
reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance
information to Shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event and all Directors,
senior management and external auditor make an effort to attend
the AGM of the Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the
Shareholders are given a minimum of 20 clear days and minimum
of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the AGM
of the Company. The Company supports the CG Code's principle
to encourage Shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under
the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll included in circulars
to Shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by
the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions
proposed at general meeting are voted separately. The results of the
poll was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Company has maintained a corporate website
(www.luxey.com.hk) as a channel to promote effective corporate
communication with the investors and the general public. The
website is used to disseminate Company announcements, circulars,
Shareholder information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information in an electronic format on a timely basis.

The Shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly to

ensure effectiveness and compliance with the current regulatory
and other requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B AR E

el ite 10/F, 8 Observatory Road, e
Tsimshatsui, sk
artners -
P Hong Kong RIUEHESHE 108

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LUXEY INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 212, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30
June 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA™) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:

1. Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

2. Impairment assessment of trade and loan receivables
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENARBSEEZER

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

Y3 BB KRB ZRERE

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$7,472,000.
RZZE-NFERA=THIL: BEXBEEVE BEX
F AR ¥57,472,0007T ©

For the impairment assessment, the Group appointed
an independent external valuer to assess the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment.
HAEREMNS w EEECZEBLINEMHERMTE
ME BEERE2ZATHEEEE-

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as key audit matter due to the
significant judgement involved by the management in
impairment assessment.

BAEERYE  BEARBREFLABRERS
B RAREEEBARBENGELEAHE-

Our major audit procedures to address this matter
included the following:
BMEREZER T EBREFBRRENT:

—  We assessed the fair value calculations methodology

used and the appropriateness of the key assumptions
adopted in the fair value less cost of disposal;

— HFAEFEAERZAFEFERERAFER
HEKRAMRAZ TEBRR 22BN

—  We discussed with management whether any

impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised;

- HZfEeHEERENwmESFEETARETRKIE
RIMAEHYELE

- We challenged the reasonableness of key

assumptions based on our knowledge of the business
and industry; and

— BAERBEASHEBRITENNZ GAT2R
JzEBM R

—  We checked on sampling basis, the accounting and

relevance of the input data used.
— BfielmETNREMERBAREBZ 851K
B KRR -

—  We evaluated the competency of the independent

external valuer taking account its experience and
qualifications.

— BB FEBEIIINB A ERD 2 88 ) - W E RE AR
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Key Audit Matter
BREEEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEMMFEEEZEE

Impairment assessment of trade and loan receivables

FE W & 5 RR R K% BB W & R 2 Rk (B T A

Refer to notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2EFRAM B MR E24525 -

As at 30 June 2019, included in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position was trade and loan
receivables of approximately HK$39,899,000 and
HK$7,608,000 respectively. The identification of doubtful
debts requires significant judgement about whether
objective evidence for impairment exists, taking into
consideration the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. It also requires significant
estimates when determining the estimated recoverable
amount of the doubtful trade and loan receivables.

R-ZZ—NFRNA=1TH 2545 %39,899,0007T &
7E¥57,608,000 L ENE ZIRA RERERBIEE &
SENEaVBERRART - BRIREFEFNEEBA
IR E BT AR BT WREL R ENZTEHER
REFEELERAE -NETERKREZRANEKRE
ARRE LT AT B & R AR E L E ARG -
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Our major audit procedures to address this matter
included the following:
BMREZFEZ T EETREFBEFBNOT

—  We obtained confirmations from debtors on a sample

basis to verify the accuracy of the debtor balances;
— RIS RmBEEERESADRSER UZEEH
AFEEREVAERENE |

—  We checked on a sample basis the accuracy of the

ageing of trade and loan receivables;
— BMERMEEERERKE SRR REWER
RS By SERE L

- We reviewed the receipts of cash after the year end

for significant accounts;

— RAERFHEARRFERKENRSUIER:



Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B AR E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENARBSEEZER

The Group generally allows credit period ranging from
14 to 90 days or specific terms for its customers. As
at 30 June 2019, the trade and loan receivables of
approximately HK$10,508,000 were past due. This has
increased the risk that the carrying values of trade and
loan receivables may be impaired.
EEE-—RAAZEFPEEN F14E90K 4 E HIR &Y
EEBH-R-_T—NFNA=TH" #%%10,508000
THEKE SRR N ERERD B - HERKE 5 R
TR ENE SR BREE R se R E Y LB E e

An allowance of trade and loan receivables of
approximately HK$1,841,000 was recorded during the
year to reduce its carrying amount to its recoverable
amount.
AEEHSEKEIERRERERBEBHENEL
1,841,0007T LA H AR E{E R 2= H A Yol & &8

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all the information in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

- We discussed with management to understand their

collection actions in respect of overdue balances and

the basis of any allowance for irrecoverable amounts;
— BFAEEEEEETImATRESEHBHER

BB TTE) REE RO e BB EHEELE:

- We reviewed critically management’s impairment

provision in light of the Group’s recent collection
experience and also available credit information
about customers; and

— BMERE EEENHENEERAIANTPE
EEM BERNEEEBORERE: &

—  We considered the adequacy of the disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements in relation to credit
risk on trade and loan receivables.

- BFEZRRGEUBRETESEHREHARENK
EORPREUERNEERRIEL T EHKE-

Hib&E#

EFAHAMENAER - EMENERENER
FHRANMEEH ETEREGFEEMBEHRER R
BB RS -

B EGRE M BERERNBERL NREEMER -
BATF T HZFEMERERERPZARNEE

£ =4
4 A ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHE R E

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B AR E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHE R E

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Leung Man Kin, with Practising Certificate
number: P07174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F, 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

26 September 2019, Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

MEBEmR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

Revenue

Cost of sales and service rendered

Gross loss

Other income
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment of goodwill
Allowance for trade and
loan receivables, net
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic (cents per share)

Diluted (cents per share)

A
#HE AR AR 2 AR

£

H e
WE - BELRERE

BB RE
EUE B R

R E B R
HERX
THEM

REEE
FAFSRAR

BRELAT B 1R
PIEET 5=

FREBRE
TH AL

EN/NETEZ Z SN
IRk

BRER
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Note
Bt

19
20

11

12

13

17

2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
131,778 156,572
(134,131) (195,894)
(2,353) (39,322)
6,578 2,607
(1,201) (6,789)
= (78,064)
14,615 (19,641)
(1,150) (1,435)
(25,971) (22,035)
(9,482) (164,679)
(728) (893)
(10,210) (165,572)
782 5,954
(9,428) (159,618)
(3,898) (138,268)
(5,530) (21,350)
(9,428) (159,618)
(0.057) (2.232)
(0.057) (2.232)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REeEsRkEME2EKER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment

tems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note
Bt

FREER

Hit 2wk
TEeBH T BEEERER -

EfMME BERRBELEZ
(E54t) B8k

AEF 7 ERm ZIRE -

BMEIRINER 2 BN R

BRRAFREMEEEE
18

FAZHEKEAE

TH AL

AREHEEA
IR LS

2019 2018
—E-NEF | —ZT\&
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
(9,428) (159,618)
(2,624) 5,027
(255) 38
(2,879) 5,065
(12,307) (154,553)
(5,630) (134,570)
(6,677) (19,983)
(12,307) (154,553)

EREE (2R SRAT —B—hFEH 085



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R &

At 30 June 2019 R-FE—HNEFNHA=1+H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Club debenture

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Loan receivables

Pledged bank deposits
Bank and cash balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Other loans

Employee benefit obligations
Current tax liabilities

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

FRBEE
E RIS
S FrfES

FRBEERE

RBEE

Eay
JEWE 5 J A AR K
U & X
EEMIRITIFR
RITRAER

RBEERE

RBAE

N E 5 R AR
HipER
BE®MEE
BB RE

REBRERE

REBEERE

BEERERADAE

FRBEE
ELEHRBRE

BEERE
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Note
HtaE

19

21
22
23
24
24

25
26
27

28

2019 2018
—2-NF —FN\F
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFT BEFT
7.472 16,970
50 50
7,522 17,020
3,016 4,882
44,260 52,089
7,608 2,507
361 434
47,701 57,853
102,946 117,765
20,798 19,008
- 26,044
2,500 4,720
477 503
23,775 50,275
79,171 67,490
86,693 84,510
122 1,594
86,571 82,916




CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2019 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Chan Hiu Kwan
FREES
Executive Director

HITEF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B RO &

BRAER B
RRBEE ARG

(LN
fei 55

TR S

BEAHE

Note
Bt

29
31

At 30 June 2019 R-FE—NFENA=+H

2019 2018
—B-nE | —T-N\#F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BHTT
263,444 266,194
(170,700) (167,018)
92,744 99,176
(6,173) (16,260)
86,571 82,916

BEgR_E—NAFNALAZF+NAMETLTHT
NNEEREREE:

Lau Chun Fat, George
BER
Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERREBXR

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

At1July 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year

Issue of shares (note 29))

Conversion of series B convertible
non-voting preference shares into
ordinary shares (note 29(0))

Capital contributions from
non-controling interests

Changes in equity for the year

At30June 2018 and 1 July 2018

Initial application of HKFRS 9 (note 3)

Restated balance as at 1 July 2018

Total comprehensive income for the year

Conversion of convertible non-voting
preference shares into ordinary shares

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests

Change in equity for year

At30 June 2019
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RZE-t£+A-8
ERRERESE

BRI (H290)

RS AR EREEELRES
BEER(Wi290)

FEREENALTE

EREsE

H-E-N\FAAZTAR
5 A8

EREREEDRREEN
2958 (3)

RZB-NELA-HZ
REJIEH
Fr2ENELE
TERERRERTRELS
FEREEERIE

FhEERY

RZB-NERB=TA

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRERAELR
Plant and
machinery Capital Non-
Share Share Translation revaluation redemption  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BERER
e kit ERfE Efifif ETHERE 2itER L] FERER BREE
note29) (ot b)) (rote3NbJ)  (note 31b)ii)  (note 31(b)ir)
(W) (Wasnon) (o)) (i) (FEsion)
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
267,194 630,402 (113) 6,568 150 (739,685) 163,856 223 166,079
- - 143 3,555 S (138,268) (134,570) (19.983) (154,553)
7,000 62,890 - - - - 69,890 - 69,890
(8,000) 8,000 - - - S = - -
- - - - - - - 1,500 1,500
(1,000) 70,890 143 3,555 - (138,268) (64,680) (18.483) (83,163)
266,194 701,292 (630) 10123 150 (877,953) 99,176 (16,260) 82,916
- - - - - (802) (802) (26) (828)
266,194 701,292 (630) 10123 150 (878,755) 98374 (16,286) 82,088
- - (216) (1,516) - (3,899) (5,630) (6,677) (12,307)
2,750) 2,750 - - = = - - -
- - - - - - - 16,790 16,790
{2,750) 2,750 (216) (1,516) - (3.8%) (5,630) 10113 4483
263,444 704,042 (846) 8,607 150 (882,653) 9,744 (6,173) 86,571




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Interest income
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment of property,
plant and machinery
Impairment of goodwill
Allowance for inventories
Allowance for trade and
receivables
Reversal of allowance for
trade receivables

Operating loss before working
capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and

other receivables
Increase in loan receivable
Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables
(Decrease)/increase in provision for
employee benefit obligations

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/
(used in) operating activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTMER

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

Note
Kt
RETHoHERE
BrAF AT E 1B
LA T IE B FrEAE:
B 75 A X 11
F B U A 9
e 19
HEWE BEM
R EE
Y BE R EESRE
19
EESYERE 20
GFE#RE 13
FEULE 5 N EoAth BR SR 1
13
JEUS B 5 BR B
24

FERL, (M)

FEWE 5 R EABBRFUR A,
(&)

JE U & SRIE A

BT E 5 K H A BRRIE i1,
OR )

R EmA EERE Ohld)
/38

rEmB/ (A z2RE

B FFHR

REFBRE (A2

BEFH

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BB F T BT T
(10,210) (165,572)
728 893
(137) (827)
4,400 11,856
1,884 =
1,201 6,789
= 78,064

= 15,507
1,841 19,641
(16,456) (55)
(16,749) (33,704)
1,866 (16,243)
21,748 (40,566)
(5,233) (2,507)
1,790 (6,141)
(2,020) 327
1,402 (98,834)
(26) (31)
1,376 (98,865)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o }E ﬁ/)lbg ‘%%

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #EZ—ZF

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Decrease in pledged bank deposits
Interest received
Proceed from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash (used in)/generated
from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan from a related company

Repayment to loan from a related
company

Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issue expenses paid

Capital contributions from non-
controlling interests

Net cash (used in)/generated
from financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances
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2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
73 5,126

137 321

6 _
(1,307) (1,433)
(1,091) 4,014

= 10,000
(10,000) =
= 70,000
= (110)

= 1,500
(10,000) 81,390
(9,715) (13,461)
(437) 222
57,853 71,092
47,701 57,853
47,701 57,853




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is Unit B,
5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building, 1 Wing Ming Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company's
shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRMAFTRZEITEREBMEREEAD
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) ERFITIRLZETERBMEHREER

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2018. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate
to the recognition, classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of
financial instruments, impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 July 2018 (date of initial application)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 July 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December
2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1 July 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits and other
components of equity, without restating comparative
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in the following
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

(i) Classification

From 1 July 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at FVTOCI
or FVTPL, and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at FVTOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

3. BRAHIREBIEBUBHREER

(&

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) BRI REEITEEUBREER
(#&)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

BB BHEEREIREHMT A
/ Z::)
(@5=1

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Measurement iTE

(i)

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

At initial recognition, the Group measures financial
assets at their fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(1) Measurement (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amoristed cost or FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

RAFT REEITEBYBREER

(&

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) EAFMIREEIEEMBREER
(#&)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

BB BHREERFEIREMT A

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(1) Measurement (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVTOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFITIRKZETEAMKEREEAR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (%)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITIRLZETERBMEHREER
(%)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued) BB BHEEREIF LM T A
(&)
(iii)  Impairment (i) JB1E
From 1 July 2018, the Group assesses on a forward BT N\FtH—H &&H
looking basis the expected credit losses associated 1R RIS M B ST AR R SR AR 5T
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. EZEBIAEBECEREES
The impairment methodology applied depends on B-FEAREREZRTEER
whether there has been a significant increase in B = & K& A0 i E ©
credit risk.
For trade receivables, the Group applies the REWE SRR ME  ~EED
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which FE R BB IS LRI BT AERT
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised ZBIEAE ZAEREERE
from initial recognition of the receivables. HAES18 B B X T o e W SR IE s 1
%7\3\ ®
Set out below is the impact of the adoption of X E RN E A B 7% R 2R
HKFRS 9 on the Group. FORBAER  HE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif) - Impairment (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact on the
Group's opening accumulated losses as at 1 July
2018 as follows:

RAFT REEITEBYBREER

(&

(a) EAFMIREEIEEMBREER
(#&)

BB BHREER IR M T A
(&)

(iii) Jat1E (&)
TERBABAREBRR _T—NF

TtA-BZFNRABRZTE
LI

100

Note HK$'000
Hat BT T
Increase in impairment losses for R3S IH 2 R E BB N
— trade receivables —EWE SRR (a) 783
— loan receivables —EIKRER (@) 45
Adjustment to accumulated losses RZZE—NFLH—-BENR
from adoption of HKFRS 9 on BBV B RE LR E5R
1July 2018 HIEFEB AR 828
Attributable to: THIA T RS
Owners of the Company ZIN/NESTE Z N 802
Non-controlling interests FEVERR HE 2 26
828
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(iif) - Impairment (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The following table and the accompanying notes

below explain the original measurement categories

under HKAS 39 and the new measurement

categories under HKFRS 9 for each class of the

Group's financial assets as at 1 July 2018.

Financial assets

TRHEE

Trade receivables

JEWE 5 8RR

Deposits and other receivables
Be REMEYERR

Loan receivables

FEER

Pledged bank deposits
BERBTER

Bank and cash balances

RTRR S

Note

g3

@

@

@)

®)

(b)

Classification

under

HKAS 39

BB ERE30%
BTAE

Loans and receivables
ERRERFE

Loans and receivables

ERRIENFE

Loans and receivables
ERRERE

Loans and receivables

ERRIENFE

Loans and receivables

BEFRIENE

3. BRAHIREBIEBUBHREER

(&

(a) BRI REEITEEUBREER

(%)

BB BHEEREIRTHMTA

B
(#&)

(i) JBi1E (4%

TR T XEEMN M R E E
RZFE-N\FtLtA-RHZ&ES
MEEET B S ERIF395IA
TZREFERNNRBBMER
FERIESRIAT 2=t B R

Classification

under

HKFRS 9
ERUMBREER B
BETzZ2E

Amortised cost

B
Amortised cost
BEKAR
Amortised cost
B
Amortised cost

B AR

Amortised cost

B A

Carrying
amount
under
HKAS 39
EEat
R %393
BNz
REE
HK$ 000
BETT

39,837

6,354

2,507

434

57,853

EEER (BR) BRLAR —B-NFEFER

Carrying
amount
under
HKFRS 9
BB
HEER
F9RET 2
REE

HK$ 000
BETT

39,054
6,354
2,462

434

57,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif) - Impairment (Continued)
Notes:

(@) Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
and loan receivables that were classified as loans
and receivables under HKAS 39 are now classified at
amortised cost. Allowances for impairment of trade
receivables and loan receivables of approximately
HK$783,000 and HK$45,000 was recognised in opening
accumulated losses as at 1 July 2018 on transition to
HKFRS 9 respectively.

(b)  Pledged bank deposits, bank and cash balances that
were classified as loans and receivables under HKAS
39 are now classified at amortised cost. There was no
impact on the amounts recognised in relation to these
assets from the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts for
all financial liabilities as at 1 July 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application.

1 O 2 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif) - Impairment (Continued)

For assets in scope of the HKFRS 9 impairment
model, impairment losses are generally expected
to increase and become more volatile. The Group
has determined that the application of HKFRS 9
impairment model requirements at 1 July 2018
results in an additional impairment allowance as
follows:

Impairment allowance at

3. BRAHIREBIEBUBHREER

(&

(a) BRI REEITEEUBREER
(#&)

BB BHEEREIRTHMTA

B
(#&)

(iii) Jat1E (&)

BN E B B E R F ISR
BEEMNGEEANZEEMS  — &
BHPREEIE KA PTIE L E 15
FREB AEBEEEN_-F
—NFLtA-HREREBEMHR
HEREISRRERE R EEBR

INBBEREBIT
Note HK$'000
ok:a BT

30 June 2018 under HKAS 39

Additional impairment recognised at
1 July 2018 on:

Trade receivables

Loan receivables

Impairment allowance at
1 July 2018 under HKFRS 9

Impairment losses related to trade and other
receivables and loan receivables are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

RIER BT 2ERIZE3958

RZZE—NFXA=+HHX

B R 20,138
THEER-_E—N\F+H—H

R FEINBAE

JEWE 5 R (a) 783
e & 3 (@) 45
RIEE B MRS AR FE 5%

RZE—N\FLtHA—HH

VERERE L 20,966
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

104

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue
is recognised. It replaced HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 July
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at
1 July 2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and the related
interpretations.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 resulted in the following
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFITIRKZETEAMKEREEAR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (&

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (a) ERFITIRLZETERBMEHREER

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when control
of the commodities has transferred, being when the
goods are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the goods.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Revenue from provision of subcontracting services is
recognised at the point in time when services performed
to the customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have significant
impacts on the amount of revenue recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 July 2018. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases
BEMBRELENE16KEE

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

3. BRAHIREBIEBUBHREER

(&

(b) EEMEEREMHTREBTE
R RS %A

AEETEREFERADEGER -F
—\FtA—HFARNTEREERAR
HERRE AT RSB BB IS IS £
Al ZEMA] MEERT TR B RS
ERBRAT IR EAEEERE -

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RUTBHED®
LA BT Y
SEMBEXR

1 January 2019
—E-NF—A—A

1 January 2019

53 (BRMBERERBZES) FBRAHMGHEEN T EERR —ET-NE—A—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

1 January 2019

ERMBRELN T -HAFE_T—FBERAZFESE —E-NF—HA—H8
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019
ERGHERFE2R 2B RARNBERFIRAEbE I RP#ER —E-NF—H—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRMAFTRZEITEREBMEREEAD
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (&

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEMKRENNHITRELEITE

effective (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. Further details
of the expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS
16, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group's interim
financial report for the six months ending 31 December
2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that interim financial
report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

108

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and
lessees will recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS
16 carries forward the accounting requirements for
lessors in HKAS 17 substantially unchanged. Lessors
will therefore continue to classify leases as operating or
financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply
the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRMAFTRZEITEREBMEREEAD
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) (#)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) EEMEMKRENNHITRELEITE

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group's operating
leases. The Group's offices, warehouses, director’s
quarter and car parking spaces are currently classified
as operating leases and the lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and
measure a liability at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments and recognise a corresponding
right-of-use asset for these leases. The interest expense
on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-
use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group's
assets and liabilities will increase and the timing of
expense recognition will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 35, the Group's future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for its offices, warehouses, director’s quarter
and car parking spaces amounted to approximately
HK$16,136,000 as at 30 June 2019. These leases are
expected to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The amounts will be adjusted for the effects
of discounting and the transition reliefs available to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets, the Group expects that the transition
adjustments to be made upon the initial adoption of
HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected
changes in accounting policies as described above could
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements from 2019 onwards.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. plant and
machinery that are measured at revalued amount).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Consolidation (Continued)

112

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. NCI are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity. NCI are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the NCI having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the NClI are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4., FESTBER (&)
(a) Consolidation (Continued) (a) #ERB (&)
In the Company's statement of financial position, RARBBMBARREKF R E AR
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less IR B R A RBEE RS D
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as held BRBIELENRERIN(XBED
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified HARKELENHEHRES) -

as held for sale).

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (b) ¥XEHEEE
The acquisition method is used to account for the REBRABUIEERERE O F AT
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. BoMBARSNKR REBSHFRZ
The consideration transferred in a business combination HEREDNERMEEERERAZA
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the FE BT ZRATIR FIEEZE
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred B REMSAREE - WEER
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related PR B AR AR E R B AR 7% HA RS
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which BRAEAY RKERMNBAR 2T
the costs are incurred and the services are received. BREERAE HRARKERS
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the Z AT ERE-
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.
The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred HEREeHEBLASBEREENER
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the AR BRIEERABZ AT FEZE
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded BIOIIEERE - AEEERGAHNE
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group's share of the net ERBEZATPFEBLHEZERES
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over BZEMERIREEBRAERE
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in NEFEELEBWENE -

consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

114

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The NCI in the subsidiary are initially measured at the
non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the
net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #EZ—F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 EZ—F

—NFNA=F+HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

116

(i)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEGHHE (&)

() & (&)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) ZERREFESL (&)

(iiij) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the translation reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

118

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than plant
and machinery as described below) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Plant and machinery held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their revalued amounts, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of such plant and machinery is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in plant and
machinery revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such plant and
machinery is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the plant and
machinery revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of revalued plant and machinery is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued plant and machinery, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the plant
and machinery revaluation reserve is transferred directly
to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z=F—NFNA=F+HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

120

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

20% or
over the lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 20% - 50%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method

are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Club debenture

Club debenture with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
debenture has suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

122

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

(i)

instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z=F—NFNA=F+HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0}

124

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL — if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOC],
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Policy prior to 1 July 2018

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically trade
and other receivables, loan receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank and cash balances are classified in this
category.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

126

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are amounts due from customers for
the provision and arrangement of credit facilities to the
customers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of loans receivable is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(m)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

128

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the wholesale’s specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised
by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
wholesaler as this represents the point in time at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment is due.

Revenue from provision of subcontracting services is
recognised at the point in time when services performed
to the customers.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r)

130

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 July 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Subcontracting fee income is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and Kingdom of Cambodia
(the "Cambodia”) are members of central
pension schemes operated by the local municipal
governments. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension schemes to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension schemes
is to meet the required contributions under the
schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

132

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(u)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

134

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is
the case, recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses on trade and other receivables and loan receivables.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For loan receivables and other receivables, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However,
if the credit risk on the loan receivables and other
receivables has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that loan receivables and other receivables at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a loan receivables and other receivables. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events on a
loan receivables and other receivables that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as
well as consideration of various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group's core operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z=F—NFNA=F+HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

140

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z=F—NFNA=F+HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

142

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

— The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

144

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down
as at the reporting date, together with any additional
amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by
default date determined based on historical trend, the
Group’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKAS 17 Leases.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z=F—NFNA=F+HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 July 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its loans and receivables are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have
been affected.

In addition, for trade and loan receivables that are
assessed not to be impaired individually, the Group
assesses them collectively for impairment, based on
the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables, etc.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Policy prior to 1 July 2018 (Continued)

Only for trade and loan receivables, the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent
period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
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values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
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off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 30 June 2019 was approximately HK$7,472,000
(2018: HK$16,970,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

150

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, income tax of approximately
HK$782,000 (2018: HK$5,954,000) was credited to
profit or loss.

Impairment of trade receivables

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018, the
management of the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that trade receivables are impaired. The provision policy
for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of trade receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional allowance may
be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(9]

Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$39,837,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$20,138,000).

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018, the
management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based on
the credit risk of trade receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$39,899,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$5,435,000).

R TREMNEEZERR (&)

(0 EUWESERRREE

RZE-NEXNA=1+B - EKE
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

152

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Allowance for slow-moving inventories of approximately
HK$nil (2018: HK$15,507,000) was made for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

Fair values of plant and machinery

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the plant and machinery.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. The fair value of plant and machinery
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$6,176,000 (2018: HK$15,153,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi (“RMB") which are the
functional currencies of the principal operating entities of
the Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

154

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentration of credit risk as 83% (2018: 48%) and
94% (2018: 94%) of the total trade receivables are due
from the largest third party debtor and the five largest
third party debtors respectively.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.
The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited

because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The Group’s
financial liabilities are repayable on demand or within one
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group's loan from a related company bears interest
at fixed interest rate and therefore is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
pledged bank deposits and loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. These deposits and loan
bear interests at variable rates that vary with the then
prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #ZE —FE—WFENA=1HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(e) Categories of financial instruments

Mg REEE

B(E)

() £BMITAZEH

2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets: SREE:
Financial assets at amortised cost REHK AT ECEREE 99,930 -
Loans and receivables (including ERREUER(BERS
cash and cash equivalents) FIReEEIER) - 106,985
Financial liabilities: cHaE:
Financial liabilities REHK AT ECERAE
at amortised cost 23,775 44,221

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The

following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair

value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to

valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. A¥EETEE)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June (@) A FEBREBR-ZF—HLFARA
2019: ETHEZERFEENT
Fair value measurements using: Total
ATEHERA: N~
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
Description #1E $1B H2E #$3E —B-NEF

HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$000
EBRTT BETT BRETT BETT

Recurring fair value measurements: ZXE#ATLEHE:

Plant and machinery B R - - 6,176 6,176
Fair value measurements using: Total

AT EHERA: a3

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018

Description 1B &1 F2E 3/ —T-N\F

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT AETT BT

Recurring fair value measurements: EE# AL EE:
Plant and machinery TR I 23 - = 15,153 15,153
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e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AFEFE &)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) UESBAFEFAEZEEYHK:

based on level 3:

Plant and
machinery
B E R
Description F15 IR
HK$°000
BT
At beginning of year REH) 15,153
Total gains or losses recognised PRz WakEEERENER®
in profit or loss * (3,860)
in other comprehensive income RE A2 E WA (3.314)
Purchases BEE 87
Disposal & (1,890)
At end of year NG N 6,176
® Include gains or losses for assets held at O BEERREARSEEE
the end of reporting period Z W sk & A (3,860)
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e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 EZ—F

—NFNA=F+HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(b)

160

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

based on level 3: (Continued) (#%&)

Description =15

At beginning of year R F )

Total gains or losses recognised PR WA EEAENBRY
in profit or loss ®
in other comprehensive income REMZEKA

Purchases EE

At end of year RER

#® Include gains or losses for assets held at

the end of reporting period WSk &8

The total gains recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The total losses recognised in profit or loss including those
for assets held at end of reporting period is presented
in cost of sales and service rendered in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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(b) UEIERAFEFEZEEHR:

WBERBEHRFBEEEZ

Plant and
machinery
WS
HK$°000
BEF T

16,732
(8,099)

6,429
91

15,153

(8,099)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 30 June 2019:

The Group assistant finance manager is responsible
for the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair value measurements. The Group's assistant finance
manager reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group’s
assistant finance manager and the Board of Directors at
least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. RFEFEE)

(c)

162

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 30 June 2019: (Continued)

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly as below:

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs

FiE fEE R THREBARE

Fair market value of Combination of market Estimated useful life
plant and machinery comparable approach and

cost replacement approach
BE k&2 A TFHE MHELRERKAEE Ay et Al ERFH
At
Adjusting factor

HEAR

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, there
were no changes in the valuation techniques used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

REVENUE 8. WA
The Group's revenue which represents sales of goods to AEEz W= (EEF2EREE 98
customers, subcontracting fee income and interest income BIRMANKEEBEER ZFBWA) T :

from money lending business are as follows:

2019 2018

—g-nE | —T-)%

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Sales of goods EmiEE 119,531 137,797

Subcontracting fee income DEEBERA 11,827 18,505
Interest income from REMBEER 2 FBUWA

money lending business 420 270

131,778 156,572

EEER (BR) ARAT —B-NEFESH 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hfttlz
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Design fee income JEFERA - 34
Insurance claim received 2R RS 42 =
Interest income F B A 137 827
Reversal of allowance for receivables JE U5 BR SR B e 1 B - 55
Reversal of provision for EERAE FRERD

employee benefit obligations 1,260 -
Government grants (note) BB (Hat) 1,298 1,123
Sundry income FETEWA 32 568

Interest income from customer B PR EWA
late payment 2,554 -
Sale of scrap product $HE BERE m 1,255 -
6,578 2,607
Note: Government grants were received as refund of value-added tax and Mat - BWEBNHE AEER R E OB 2R

export duty. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
attached to the grants.
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e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. 7 HEHR
The Group has three operating segments as follows: TORAEE = EKE D
Swimwear and garment— Manufacturing and trading IKEE K AR S - EEREBEXE
of swimwear and garment K BR 2 2
products
Trading and on-line - Trading and provision of on-line BN E - BHREHAEL
shopping related shopping and media related RE YRR By R EeE
services 8 78 AR 75
Money lending —  Money lending business =31 - BEER
The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units REE A G T RETRE R RR
that offer different products and services. They are managed 2 RS SETE AL - EEE(\‘%@E%%%E??
separately because each business requires different technology PRz ZM R M5 R A SRBELE
and marketing strategies. 3o
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KEDE 2 GFTBUR RS M S ImR M &
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial AFTE FRR - BB R A Sk BB N B IEH
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include other fib i 25 ﬁﬂ‘“}ﬂi$ RIERE R EITR R
income, finance costs, impairment of goodwill and corporate HMEEER HEEELTBRIEGME
administrative and other operating expenses. Segment assets % ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂfﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁZﬁF ° 53
do not include club debenture, goodwill and other assets for HEEYTEERE —EEEARZER
general administrative use. Segment liabilities do not include REME-—RITRERAZAEE

loan from a related company and other liabilities for general
administrative use.
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 7 EER (&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, ARES AR EEREEZEBER:
assets and liabilities:
Trading and
Swimwear on-line
and shopping Money
garment related lending Total
ESK
KERRE RLBWEES &E @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT BEFT BEFT
Year ended 30 June 2019 BE-ZE-NF
RA=ZTBLEE
Revenue from external customers  RESNRZFE 2 WA 44,721 86,637 420 131,778
Segment (loss)/profit PE(BE)/EH (21,326) 1,402 (197) (20,121)
Depreciation %ﬁ% 4,372 - - 4372
Income tax credit FTSHiES (782) = = (782)
Other material non-cash items; HthERFREEE -
Allowance for receivables R AR (5) (1,748) (88) (1,841)
Additions to segment REDHIRBEE
non-current assets 1,307 - - 1,307
As at 30 June 2019 R-E-AEAA=1H
Segment assets DEEE 37,053 41,730 12,134 90,917
Segment liabilities HEEE 20,368 1,408 44 21,820
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-_E-N\EXA=1+H
LEE
Revenue from external customers ~ RESNREFE 2 A 63,209 93,093 270 156,572
Segment loss HEER (64,048) (13,322) (200) (77,570)
Depreciation e 11,855 - 1 11,856
Income tax credit FTSHiES® (5,954) = = (5,954)
Other material non-cash items: HthEKRFREER -
Allowance for inventories FERE (15,507) = = (15,507)
Allowance for receivables FEW IR R (3,515) (16,126) S (19,641)
Impairment of property, mE W REERE
plant and equipment (6,789) - - (6,789)
Additions to segment NHERBEE
non-current assets 1,396 - 37 1,433
As at 30 June 2018 RZE-NEXB=TH
Segment assets 2 5% 51,116 59,078 7,923 118,117
Segment liabilities AHEE 39,824 28 14 39,866
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e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment profit or loss:

Total profit or loss of reportable segments
Impairment of goodwill
Unallocated amounts:

Other income

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Consolidated loss for the year

10. 2 HEH (&)

DEERCHIER:

2019 2018

—B-NF | —ZT\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Al RE D IERRE (20,121) (77,570)

EESNCRE = (78,064)
Ao eHE:

H A Ug A 18,809 2,868

THEHR (7,946) (5,959)

B 7% A AN (170) (893)

FRERE EE (9,428) (159,618)

EEER (BR) BRLAR —B-NFEFER
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e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities:

Assets BE

Total assets of reportable segments AREDHEELR
Club debenture eMES

Other assets Hi&EE
Consolidated total assets mEEERE

Liabilities =N

Total liabilities of reportable segments AmESHERE
Loan from a related company *E—EEERR]
Other liabilities Hitm B &
Consolidated total liabilities rEAaEME

Apart from the above, the totals of other material items
disclosed in the segment information are the same as the
consolidated totals.
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10. 2 HEHR (&)

PTHEEREBEZHIER:
2019 2018
—EBE-NE —E—N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Xl 90,917 118,117
50 50
19,501 16,618
110,468 134,785
= 21,820 39,866
ZE® = 10,000
2,077 2,003
23,897 51,869

Bt EIN ROMBERBBRZEMERKN

HEBRE

B4R S BEMRA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. EER (£&)

HEEHR :

Geographical information:

AEBRBIINREPZBA (REFPHE
o) RESERBEEEMN (REEMED

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of
the customers and information about its non-current assets by

location of assets are detailed below: ) FEELAN R
Revenue Non-current assets
KA kRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E2-NE ZE-N\F —E-hEF ZE-N\F
HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
BETFT BEFT BETT BEFT
Hong Kong BB 66,163 94,171 622 663
PRC except HongKong B (BB KBRS

and Macau 155 261 2,274 3,774
Cambodia RIEE 11,827 17,604 4,626 12,583
United Kingdom i 13,758 10,580 = =
Spain [ipli%s 3,353 5,109 - -
Sweden ikl 8,688 8,925 - -
United States of America =B ([Z£8])

(the "USA") 249 7,253 - -
Netherlands FIE 4,741 6,026 = =
Israel el 1,178 2,294 - -
Italy EAF 14,7111 - - 2
France EE 4,731 550 = =
Others Hity 2,224 3,799 - -
Consolidated total meBE 131,778 156,572 7,522 17,020

EEER (BR) GRLH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. ZEEHR (&)
Revenue from major customers: REETEEFZWA:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Trading and on-line shopping B 5 M4 EREYAEE D &
related segment
Customer a XFa 64,538 N/AAS 38 A
Customer b EFb N/AT 38 A * 51,301
Customer ¢ BPFc N/ATE i * 25,314
*  The Corresponding revenue does not contributed over 10% of the *  MHERARSEEREES RNEBMNLE
total revenue of the Group in the respective year. WA B EL#EI10% o
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

FINANCE COSTS 1. BERAE
2019 2018
—g-nE | —T-N%
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT
Interest on other loans H it B F 2 728 893
INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. RIBHER
2019 2018
—EB-hE —E-NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEF T BT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERREIE — BB S
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEERE - (5,031)
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ BENHAF{ B —h B> E SR
Underprovision in prior years BEFERENE - 31
Deferred tax (note 28) IEERTE (f17228) (782) (954)
Income tax credit FSTHIESR (782) (5,954)
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the P AN 68 B R F PRI M FE AR B s A - Bl Ut
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2018: Nil). BAELBEBNENREBE (ZZ—\F:
) -
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been H i 3 [ 2 & 3R B A A TA B X2 JO R AN &R
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in EREXBREBRR 2BRITHE  WIRIE
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, EHMIMITER BEREOIFTE -

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

wzEm (2R Amon —e-—need 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12. FRBHER (&)

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the T 5 R Pr1S IR % ERER B A BT 1B R IA BB
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits MESHEMSHEE 2 HR:

172

Tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT
Loss before tax B 5 A& 18 (10,210) (165,572)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REEBNEHE165%
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) —E-N\F:165%)
FHEZHE (1,685) (27,319)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ BERHBRAZRETE (2,946) (4,207)
Tax effect of expenses that are not PAIHBRAX 2 B8
deductible 1,941 21,961
Tax effect of other temporary differences KRR H ML= R~
not recognised MG e - 155
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEBEBEE BT E 5,054 10,192
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not ~ FFABEFERERZ
previously recognised MIBEBEZMETE (2,460) (336)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries H{EB R A TR K 2 & (686) (1,400)
Overprovision in prior years BAFEHRERE - (5,031)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETT - 31
Income tax credit FISHIESR (782) (5,954)
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

the following:

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation
Allowance for inventories
(included in cost of inventories sold)
Allowance for trade and
loan receivables
Reversal of allowance for receivables
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange losses
Operating lease charges
for land and buildings

There is a reversal of allowance for receivables of
approximately HK$16,456,000 (2018: HK$55,000) for the
year, being the result of persistent effort on the management 7T)
of quality of trade receivables and certain long overdue debts

are recovered during the year.

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges of approximately HK$20,169,000
(2018: HK$59,675,000) which are included in the amounts

disclosed separately above.

13. FAEE
g :
% EED BN &
BEHERERA
e
GFERE
(GFAEBHEREKA)

FENE 5 R M B R i

JRE LA R TR ¢ s 3¢ [
HEWME  WFEMEREZEE

ME - BB RRERE

SN 5 1R R
T REFZREHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

2019
—B-NF
HK$°000
BT T

460

134,131
4,400

1,841
(16,456)

56

1,201
152

4,957

AEEZ FABRENG, (Gt A) T3IE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
BT T

910
195,894
11,856

15,507

19,641
(55)

6,789
960

4,651

WEEZEEA-

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR

AEERBFBZEBERRBO BB
16,456,0007T ( == — J\ 4 : & #55,000
ERBHRREAFES NRE S EW
HEzEEERRKEE T RPEBHERS
Fr B

BHEFERABEETIRA HERKLE
M E X H#%8#20,169,0007T (=T — A

£F : ##59,675,0007T) © JiEt A EXX S Al
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EERFBEX
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T TEAT MR AL 31,792 51,990
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & /R 42 #5125k 1,774 2,430
(Reversal)/provision for RBERAMET Y (BO) BE

employee benefit obligations (1,157) 673
32,409 55,093

(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans (a) EBARE - EHEMRETE
Contributions totalling approximately HK$11,931,399 RER - B EEA B 11,931,399
(2018: HK$12,094,000) were payable to the fund at the 7T (=T — \F : % ¥12,094,0007T)

year-end. AR NEEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 14. EEEABEX (£)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEREHFMAL
RAFE AEBRAZTEHTMAL
PARE—R%EBEF(ZE—N\F: &) &
e e RIS EF 2o TP R
BoHBRMNE(ZZTE—N\F:HH)A
T2 FHEHAT

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included 1 (2018: Nil) director whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 15. The
emoluments of the remaining 4 (2018: five) individuals
are set out below:

2019 2018

—EBE-NE —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BT

Basic salaries and allowances HAF & MEBL 2,082 4,093

Discretionary bonus BB TEAL - 380
Retirement benefit scheme RAIRAE FIFTEIE R

contributions 51 84

2,133 4,557

BRI LA T #5085 -

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2019 2018
—E-NE =23—\&=
HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 B EE 70 2 8% 1,000,0007T 5 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 &% 1,000,0017C % /8% 1,500,000 - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7% 1,500,0017T 2 7% #2,000,0007T = 1
5 5

wzEM (2R aRAA —2-ress 1775



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every director is set out below:

15. EENFmEER

(a) EEFHM

BEFEZHMEIIWT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REARERLAAHNEATES 2 CAREUNE

Employer’s contribution
Estimated money to a retirement
Fees value of other benefits benefit scheme Total
e AR 2 %E EXRUKEFE MR @it
(Note (i)
(Hit)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NE | Z2-0\F | ZB-NF | Z2-0\F | ZB-NF | ZE2-N\F | ZB-NF | ZBN\F
HKS$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
AETFT | BETT | A¥Fr | BETr | AEFr | BETr | A¥Fr | BETr
Executive Directors HiTES

Chan Hiu Kwan (Note () RS (i) 220 - - - 6 - 26 -
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Aot (i) 8% (W) 160 160 306 186 8 8 474 354
Lan Chun Fat, George R - - - - - - - -
380 160 306 186 14 8 700 354

Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Fung Chan Man BEX 96 96 - - - - 9% 96
Tam Wing Kin EES 9 9% - - - - 96 96
Lee Chun Mong FEK 9% 9% - - - - 9% 9%
288 288 - - - - 288 288
668 448 306 186 14 8 988 642
Note: (i) Estimated money values of other benefits include Brat: () HEMEN 2 At ERER

rent paid, share options, insurance premium, etc.

(ii) Chan Hiu Kwan has appointed on 25 February

2019.

(iii) Lan Chi Yuen, Joseph resigned on 25 February

2019.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors

waived any emoluments during the year (2018: Nil).
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(iii)
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15.

16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$3,898,000
(2018: HK$138,268,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 6,826,032,587 (2018: 6,195,553,135) in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares would be anti-dilutive for the year
ended 30 June 2019 and 2018. Diluted loss per share was the
same as the basic loss per share for the years ended 30 June
2019 and 30 June 2018.

15.

16.

17.

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR

EENERERS (F)

(b) EERXRS RIRGHPZEKXF

m

ARRET L EAREEHARR
ARRAREERESFTZHEALTRES
BERSEEEAEARRANAER
FARFEEAKRDERZIEAR
5 ZHREH -

2

EETEEMBE_ZT-NFA=TH
I FEIRMEFMBRER (ZT—N\F ) -

BRER
BREAXNER

RAABIEBEABREERERNEETIR
BARAABEEABRBEZFRNEBREY
75 #3,898,000t (ZE—N\F: 8%
138,268,00070) KR F RN ET 2 EBR
2 I 19 £86,826,032,5878% ( —F— 1\
% :6,195,553,1350% ) st & -

BRBEER

RBE_ZT-NEFRZZE-N\FARA=T
BEFE - 1TEARKEZ M AT AR
BEREREARKSAERESER BE
“E-NFAAZTARZF-AFKA
“tTELSE Sh#EERRGRER
EIEARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

18. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

18.

Tax effects relating to each item of other comprehensive

income for the year:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment

Other comprehensive income
for the year

BERNEHCELER

EftNE BERREL
(B4)/ B8

FRABZARE

Hib 2 HE U=

BRFANEMEZAKEREERE 2RBEE

=
2019 2018
“E-hE “2-0\F
Amount Amount Amount Amount
before tax Tax after tax before tax Tax after tax
BEASE BE  RBALE | BEpcE BB RikeE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETFT BETFT
(255) - (255) 38 - 38
(3,314) 690 (2,624) 6,429 (1,402) 5,027
3,569 690 (2,879) 6,467 (1,402) 5,065
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Cost:

At 1 July 2017
Additions

Write off

Surplus on revaluation

At 30 June 2018

Additions
Disposal
Surplus on revaluation

At 30 June 2019

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:

At 1 July 2017

Provided for the year

Write off

Write back on revaluation

Impairment loss recognised

At 30 June 2018

Provided for the year
Write back on revaluation
Impairment loss recognised

At 30 June 2019

Net carrying value:
At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BAE:
RZZ—+F+A—H
A

ik

EhHER

RZE-N\F
~A=1E

#R

HE

EhAR

R-Z-n%F
~A=TH

R HERRE:

R_Z—+5F+A—H
EREE

ik

B D
ERZHESR

RIB-A\FRA=T
H

FREE

BEEED

ERRAESR

K20
AER

SREAE:
R=B-n%
AAZTH

K=2-NF
RB=TE

19. ¥ BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor

improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total

G -EER
HENFEE BERKE BAERE "E “E
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BB BT BEFT
15,049 16,732 1,928 2,805 36,514
1,183 91 159 - 1,433
_ - (390) - (390)
= (1,670) = = (1,670)
16,232 15,153 1,697 2,805 35,887
1,089 87 131 - 1,307
- (1,890) - - (1,890)
- (7,174) - - (7,174)
17,321 6,176 1,828 2,805 28,130
5,612 - 1,183 1,966 8,761
3,111 8,099 293 353 11,856
- - (390) - (390)
- (8,099) - - (8,099)
6,326 - 463 - 6,789
15,049 - 1,549 2,319 18917
169 3,860 89 282 4,400
- (3,860) - - (3,860)
1,201 - - - 1,201
16,419 - 1,638 2,601 20,658
902 6,176 190 204 1472
1,183 15,153 148 486 16,970

EEER (BR) BRLAR —B-NFEFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 19. % BMERRE (&)
Having regard to trade protectionism announced by the K REBRBFHTHE HREFE R
USA government and the risks of its impact on the global HEMKBEZENER  AEBEHDE -
economy, the Group carried out reviews of the recoverable BER&ZENAIWE R EHEYHE
amount of its property, plant and equipment. The reviews led THEMEREURERM RERPAE
to the recognition of an impairment loss of approximately R BRI EEEL5%1,201,0007T * %
HK$1,201,000 in relation to certain leasehold improvements EREORNIERER -
and furniture, fixtures and office equipment, that has been
recognised in profit or loss.
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2019 of the EIEERZZT-—NFERA=ZTHZEAR
above assets is as follows: BREEITHT:
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B EER
HEMELE BE RS BAERE AE wE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BYFT BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT
At cost BRAE 17,321 - 1,828 2,805 21,954
At valuation &ihE - 6,176 - - 6,176
17,321 6,176 1,828 2,805 28,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 19. % -BERRE (&)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2018 of the FIEER_ZT-—N\FXRA=ZTHZKRK
above assets is as follows: B EERITAT:
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B £ER
HEMEEE T/ Bt 2 BAERE HE Fak
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETFT BETT BETFT BETFT
At cost BRAE 16,232 - 1,697 2,805 20,734
At valuation ®’itE - 15,153 - - 15,153
16,232 15,153 1,697 2,805 35,887
The Group's plant and machinery were revalued at fair market REEZRE MR BB FEAERTT
value on 30 June 2019 by reference to market evidence B EER AR (ZF—N\F - BT
of recent transactions for similar plant and machinery by BRAGHRZZE-—NAFAAA=ZTHZR
International Valuation Limited (2018: International Valuation HOUME RO SR SEATN
Limited), an independent firm of professional valuers. BEHHE.
The carrying amount of the Group's plant and machinery e AR AR Rt T &E RBEE B &R
would have been approximately HK$4,425,000 (2018: rEBHmERBE EEEBOAEEK
HK$8,220,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated 4,425,0007T ( =& — )\ 4 : £ #8,220,000
depreciation and impairment losses. JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMB AR Z2KRE

RZEBE-NAFRNA=ZTH WEBRARZHF

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019 are as

182

follows: BT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and Particular of
Name operation issued share capital Percentage of ownership interest Principal activities
M2,
£8 ERREXHE BRATREFE BEREEGZAIL TEXB
2019 2018
—E-hE —BN\E
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
=83 G HE il
Easy Time BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Easy Time RERAES TRIFTZ EBR REER
Synergy Chain Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
Synergy Chain Limited EBRIHES RIETZ ERR REZER
Luxey International (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% - Investment holding and
trading
ERER (BE)ERAA B 10,0008 & A BREERRES
Luxey International Group Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100% - Microfinance business
FREBREARLA B4 1008 B EMR R
Habille Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - 100% - Inactive
Habille Limited Bk THRE AR BEZ
Luxey Online BVI 100 ordinary shares of - 100% - 100%  Trading and provision of
US$1 each media related services
ERXRLER RERAES 100RBRAEIETLZ B RRHEBRRARY
LBk
Ratio Knitting Factory Limited (“Ratio”) Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products
MEBERERRR ([FEH]) & 500,000f% & iz REZRREERmKEAR
1BEREER
Ricotex Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 50% - 50%  Investment holding and trading
of garment products and
swimwear
FmiE &k 10,0008 & REERREEREERR
&
Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd. Cambodia Registered capital of - 50% - 50%  Manufacturing and trading
("Ricotex Cambodia”) US$1,000,000/paid up of garment products and
capital of US$1,000,000 swimwear
Ricotex Industrial Co., Ltd. RER & 751,000,000% T,/ EERBEREERRIKE

(TRicotex Cambodia | )

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

B8 R71,000,000% 7T
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Name

L]

Yofiel International Group Limited

FEBREEFRAF

Nice Sky (China) Limited

KE(RE)ERAR

RESEES (BRI ERAA
*Global Post E-Commerce Trading
Limited (“Global Post")

RETEES (RN ERRA
(TR#))

TFT SR RRRERRA
(IPITEsE")

TP ERH R RERDA
(HIFmeEs])

REFERKBRARARENE")

REMERRERDT ([REFLE])

WETAEREERDA(URKE")

WETARERXBRAR (DIEXE])

* The English name of this company represents management’s best
efforts in translating the Chinese name of this company as no

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
ML,
ERREXLE

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
EE
PRC

RE

PRC

hE

PRC

HE

English name has been registered.

Global Post, TFIT& 28, REZF4E and JUEXIE are wholly-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particular of
issued share capital

BRITRAFE

10,000 ordinary shares
10,000/% & i A%
3,000,000 ordinary shares
3,000,0008% & i &
Registered capital of
RMB4,000,000/paid up
capital of RMB4,000,000
AMERAEK
4,000,0007T,/
BHARREARE
4,000,0007T

Registered capital of
HK$9,500,000/paid up
capital of HK$8,100,000
Rkt
9,500,007,/
BHRRA
##8,100,0007T
Registered capital of
HK$8,000,000/paid up
capital of HK$8,000,000
A E A E
8,000,007,/
BHRRASE
8,000,0007T

Registered capital of
RMBS$5,000,000/paid up
capital of Nil
AMEEARK
5,000,0007%,/
BHRRET

owned foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

20. AMB AT 2RE (&)

Percentage of ownership interest Principal activities

BEEEZAIL EX:$304
2019 2018
—E-hE 2N\
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B B HE &
- 100% - 100%  Inactive
Eex
- 50% - 50%  Investment holding
REER
- 100% S 100%  Inactive
BEE
- 100% = 100%  Inactive
Fid$
- 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products
EERBERmKEAR
HERKER
= 50% - 50%  Manufacturing and trading

of high-end swimwear and

related garment products
EERBERMKEAR

HEREER

* AR RFIEE M EXE T U A A
ZRXEEREEBERALNERPXE
TEEEM K -

RE - JTPITEZE  REZFIEFUMERETR
HEH T I E L

EEER (BR) ARAT —B-NEFESH 183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

Name

Principal place of business/country of

incorporation

% of ownership interests/voting rights

held by NCI

At 30 June:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

Accumulated NCI

a8

TEEEMB EMKZER

B RRE Z
EERER REEBDL

RAA=Z+H:
JEMEEE
MENE E
EMEBAE
mENBE

BEFE

REFIFE R S
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20. RIBARZRE (&)

TRETHBARZER EHEA 2 IFE
BERHAEEMSBEKN MWK ERE
2Ty ReIREHAT S5

Ricotex

MEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E—-N\F

Hong Kong/Hong Kong

B%/ BB
50%/0% 50%/0%
2019 2018
—g-h&E | —2-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEF T EHFT
4,626 12,584
11,598 16,283
(100) (1,174)
(28,644) (61,994)
(12,520) (34,301)
(6,260) (17,151)




. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

20. RMIBE AR ZRE (#&)

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Year ended 30 June: BZEABA=1THILEE:
Revenue WA 27,921 30,435
Loss B8 (8.717) (41,693)
Total comprehensive income FHERE AT (11,566) (38,748)
Loss allocated to NCI DB TIEERER 2B (5.783) (19,374)
Net cash generated from KEEBMFHES TR
operating activities 10,287 417
Net cash generated from REEZHAFHES TR
investing activities 1 2
Net cash generated from BEBEEBMS 2R FE
financing activities (46,231) -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RekREEEY
cash equivalents CRA) /#EhnsEs (35,943) 419

As at 30 June 2019, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$Nil (2018: HK$339,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

MR_B-AFENA=1H XEERTEH
ZHBRARINARBBEAM 2RITRIE
CHEGFHNRBEBEL(ZE—N\F 5%
339,0007T) - AR M R BINE BT R
FEZIMNEE B REE B RFE
EIRBE

EEER (BR) ARAT —B-NEFESH 185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT
Raw materials R R 102 1,866
Work in progress & 810 745
Finished goods R TR 2,104 2,271
3,016 4,882
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BWE S RHARR
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
Trade receivables EUE 5 ERER 39,899 39,837
Prepayments, deposits and AR ke & E b EKEIE

other receivables 4,361 12,252
44,260 52,089
The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. AEEREEFEANEZRTIAEERE -
The credit terms generally range from 14 to 90 days. Each EEH BN T14E0XK - BFUEFHIHR
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, KaEERE - HMEFASERNR AE
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks B By 7 B ME R BRRR P BRI R (B R I W B IE ©

to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. EETHENO RS

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BVEAZE30K
31 -90 days EPNE PN
91 - 180 days 91 RE180K
Over 180 days HBR180K

As at 30 June 2019, an allowance was made for
estimated irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately
HK$5,435,000 (2018: HK$20,138,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

At beginning of year REF )
Allowance for the year FARHE
Amounts written off 88 R I8
Reversal of allowance for the year FABEREE
At end of year RER

22. ERESZRHEHMBRR (&)

HEEREBHF cRIRE SR MERREE L
BREc DM -

2019 2018

—F-NF AL

HK$°000 HK$ 000

BT BETFIT

4,632 15,530

24,759 12,660

855 11,594

9,653 53

39,899 39,837

RZFE-AFRNA=+tH BT

AREZERESERMR Z2EED
BB 5,435,000t (ZE— \F: BK

20,138,0007T) °

FEWE R BEE R

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
20,138 1,375
1,753 19,150

= (332)

(16,456) (55)
5,435 20,138

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR
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e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z=F—NFNA=F+HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 30 June 2019, trade receivables of approximately
HK$10,508,000 (2018: HK$12,907,000) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

1 - 30 days 1RE30K
31-90 days 31K EOKR
91 - 180 days 91 RKE180K
Over 180 days HBE180K

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars 8t
United States dollars ETT
RMB AR
Euro BT
Total R

188
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22. BRE SRR EMARRR (4)

R-ZZE—NAENA=Z1TH BUREIER
#575%10,508,0007T (=& — \F : B
12,907,0007T ) E 8 HA1B 3 R E © b3 5K
HEE TR ERERCHR I BEIEFE

Mo ERIRE SRR R DT
2019 2018
—EF-NF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBETT BETFIT
1,262 482
1,420 778
4,173 11,594
3,653 53
10,508 12,907

REBEZRWE SRR ZREEATIIE

W REAM:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HKS$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
15,302 33,401
24,402 6,436

24 -

171 -

39,899 39,837
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

23. LOAN RECEIVABLE

Loan to customers MEEFZER
Accrued interest receivables JEURGRIE 2 FEETFI B

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loan receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by management.

The loan receivable is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The credit quality analysis of the loan receivable is as follows:

Over 3 months past due BHEA={E A A L

Receivable that was past due but not impaired relate to an
individual customer that has a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors were of the
opinion that no provision for impairment on this individual
loan was necessary as this loan receivable was fully settled
subsequent to the reporting period or there had not been a
significant change in credit quality that this balance was still
considered fully recoverable.

As at 30 June 2019, no collateral was held by the Group for
the loan receivable (2018: Nil).

23. BEWER

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
7,608 2,450

- 57

7,608 2,507

Zii'%l@lﬂﬁéé‘ﬁﬂﬂw HAREERKE
BFAZRAREREBEEERR - EEETEBH

%F‘;ﬁtﬁlﬁmﬁ%

W E RIAEEEHE -

URERZEEEESTWT:

2019 2018

—g—hE&E | —T-N&

HK$'000 HK$000

BT BT T

- 2,450

B 018 4 ROR (2 e 208 SR S A S

BEARIFBAERBZENEFBR - RIE
iﬁ?‘fﬁm%ﬁ H R UL B M B SRR BB 14 ¥ HA

AETEEENEEEEMELREAE
EJJ ML AR D BAR AP BB E - RE=
R AR St BRI & SR AE R (B A o

RZZE—NAFARNA=ZT+H AEEHES
BEMEUKER 2 ERR (ZF—\F:
m) o

VAR

EEER (BR) ARAT —B-NEFESH 189



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 EZ=F—NFNA=+HILFE

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH 24,
BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. The deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

As at 30 June 2019, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$8,815,000 (2018: HK$6,672,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

EEARTERRBRITRAESER

AEFEDEMRRITHEFRSDEMRTRITZ
T WBURRITAR TAREZEE %5
TFRTIABE BB -

R-ZE—HAENA=Z+H XEBUA
RERBBACRITRBASHEFTHRBE
8,815,0007T ( =& — )\ £ : #%6,672,000
TL) c AR HIMBINEAZ BRI R 2 I
PEE IR G0 M AETE - EERMIEERERE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BENEZRHEAMERR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Trade payables JERTE SR 3,450 787
Due to a substantial shareholder (note) BN —REERRE
BRI (Hat) 100 100
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of ~ fEfT—FEIHi B R F 2
a subsidiary (note) — AR R 2 BRRX
(Htat) - 188
Accruals and other payables JEEtE R R E M EMRR 17,248 17,933
20,798 19,008

Note: The amount due to a substantial shareholder is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25 ERESZRHEMBRR (&)

RIS B HIET 2 BN E SRR 2 0

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of

receipt of goods, is as follows: ™
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Current to 30 days BENEAZ=30K 1,977 603
31 -90 days EPNE PN 664 159
91 - 180 days 91 RE180K 711 15
Over 180 days BB 180K 98 10
3,450 787

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

AEBZENEZRRZEEEATIE

denominated in the following currencies: B REBN
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$°000
B TF T BT T
Hong Kong dollars ke 3,196 303
United States dollars =TT - 15
RMB AR 254 469
Total R 3,450 787

EEER (BR) BRLAR —B-NFEFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

26. OTHER LOANS

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT

Loan from non-controlling shareholder R E —MMB A Z
of a subsidiary IR R 2 BN - 16,044
Loan from a related company e —HBEERATCER - 10,000
Total B - 26,044

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the loan from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and loan from a related
company is fully settled.

The loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, interest-bearing at the prevailing Hong Kong
dollar prime rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited minus 1.5 % and repayable on demand.
The loan from a related company is unsecured, interest-
bearing at 2% per annum and repayable on 8 September
2018, and further extended to 8 December 2018.

The carrying amount of the loans are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

The interest rates of loan from non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary and loan from a related company at 30 June 2018
are 3.5% and 2% respectively.
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BE_ZT-NFRAA=THILFE X8
— IR /B8 2~ Bl HO SEIR AR R M B R M 2R B
—HRERRNERD BEE -

KE—RMNBARZ —RIFERBREZE
RREEAM RELLBESRTERA
AT RITEEREBN R 5% E
MEHBREREE-RE —REERR
ZERRBEER  RENR2%TENE R
AR-ZE-N\FHLANBEELE—FIE
RE_T-N\E+-ANR-

ERZEREENEEE

KB —EHBARZFERRRZER R

KE—REERARZERR T —\FR
A=1THZHMED R H3.5%K%2% °



26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

OTHER LOANS (Continued)

Loan from a related company is arranged at fixed interest rate
and exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Loan
from non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is arranged
at floating rate, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The directors estimate the fair value of other loans, by
discounting its future cash flows at the market rate, to be
approximated its fair value.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

At 1 July 2017 RZZE—t&+HA—H
Addition provisions NERE

Provisions used ERER

Exchange differences BE 5, = HR

26. HE 5K

(%)

XQ—FEJFﬂL@TZf% X DA & E ) R 5T

c AEBRmMAZATFENER
—Fﬁ MBARZFERRR 2
ﬁj—v—u‘l’ 8 $$ @.ﬁﬁgK

(6 o
AR

o SR

=&/ PR
E = //ILEEFIJ

EXEBRMBNERPRERKRBCRE

At 30 June 2018 and RZZB-N\FRA=tHEK
1 July 2018 —N\F+F—H

Addition provisions NERE

Provisions used B RS

Reversal of provisions BEgD

Exchange differences BEHEE

At 30 June 2019 R-ZE-NFEXRA=TH

et EMER R FEEE QAT EEE
27. RERREE
Provision for PRC employee
long service severance
payments compensation Total
(note (a) (note (b))
RERESE TEES
B BREE @t
(Hiit@) (HiiE®b))
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BETFT
482 3,748 4,230
- 673 673
- (346) (346)
- 163 163
482 4,238 4,720
= 103 103
- (863) (863)
- (1,260) (1,260)
- (200) (200)
482 2,018 2,500

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR
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For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

194

Provision for long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of services, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

PRC employee severance compensation

Pursuant to the PRC Labour Contract Law which became effective
on 1 January 2008, the Group is required to pay the severance
compensation to its employees if the employment contract expires
and is not renewed unless the Group has offered the employment
contract on the same terms and conditions but the offer is rejected
by the employee.

Under the Labour Contract Law, the severance compensation is
calculated based on one month's salary for each year of employment
completed by the employee and is capped at 12 months’ salary or
12 times 300% of the average monthly salary of the previous year at
the place where the employer is located, whichever is lower. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group has made the provision for
severance compensation for the existing employees in the PRC.
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27. BRERAEE (&)

Bt

(a)

(b)

REBRBERE

REZERBRL AERBEARETERLT
EARERE SR AF2E TIEEBBER
HEXNBEFIE RNAFEIORNMES 2 &
B—2HSLRBFH LREREAEE
ZRINEHEIRE 2N (BIARKEER 24
) o AEE W BB IFEAEEAMNERH
ERIETS

Hh S R R

REBE-ZENF-A-ARERZTESE
Bam%E WERaRERALEESS A
AEBEARNEREVBERBE HEREE
ERBERGR G EHERESRAMER T
IATEBRIERSN

RIBSESRE - BERUHE T RIRE S §5TK
—FREBE-EAFSHE MLERA12E
R BT MAEEF AFHFHE300%2
125 (ABREERE) -REMEPR K&
ECHRTEREGREE 2B EE LA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EIEH A
The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets HAEBBERZEEMBEEEREEN
recognised by the Group: ™
Revaluation of
plant and
machinery
BERKBEM
HK$'000
BEF T
At 1 July 2017 WR_ZE—+Ft+tH—H 1,146
Charge to other comprehensive REREAM 2 EK RN (H218)
income for the year (note 18) 1,402
Credit to profit or loss RERNEB=RIIEZ (HiF12)
for the year (note 12) (954)
At30June 2018 and 1 July 2018 R-ZE—N\FNA=+BE=ZT—N\F+LHF—H 1,594
Credit to other comprehensive RERNEMEERET
income for the year (690)
Credit to profit or loss RERNBZRYIE
for the year (782)
At 30 June 2019 R-ZE-NFXA=1H 122

wzam (2w aRoR —2-nerw 105
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e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

28.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$93,832,000 (2018:
HK$113,968,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of the respective tax
authorities. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$189,000, HK$84,000, HK$25,000, HK$7,000 and
HK$7,000 that will expire in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and
2024 respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

EEHE (F)

RIEER NEE 2 KB ARIHEHE K
P s FI 2 B 18 E5 18 40 & 4 #93,832,0007T
—F— )\F : ##¥113,968,0007T) ' BE
RREAT KB RE - AR EIATERT 2
ﬂi;}:/ﬁn*ljuw’ﬁyﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁuuLL@%IﬁéF
AERBEEBEBEINIR_Z=_ZF
B F B ZFT=FEK
ZE ZFRH 2 4975 %189,0007T « B H
84,0007T * 7 #25,0007T ~ 7 #7,0007T &
P& H7,0007T 2 518 o Ho At B 18 & 18 7] MR FR
HR4teg o

—~

R B AR 2 ML 2 B 2EY
TEA-

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each

2,000,000,000 convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.15 each

312,500,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of
HK$0.16 each

29. R
2019 2018
—E-NE —N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T JEMF T
EIE
70,000,000,000/% & A% E &
BE0.01 T ERM 700,000 700,000
2,000,000,000/% & A% E &
BHE0.1570 2 AT R AR
|G EREE S 300,000 300,000
312,500,0004% & i = &
BHE0.167T Z BRI AT HARY
|G EREE S 50,000 50,000
1,050,000 1,050,000
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Issued and fully paid:

6,828,772,313 (2018: 6,803,772,313)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

1,083,333,333(2018: 1,103,333,333)
convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.15 each

204,100,000 (2018: 204,100,000)
series B convertible non-voting
preference shares of HK$0.16 each

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

29. A& (#)

ERTRAERE:

6,828,772,313/% (ZZE— \4F:
6,803,772,3130% ) BRX EE
BE0.01 Tz E B

1,083,333,333 (= F— \&F:
1,103,333,333%) i EE
7S #80.157T 2 AT R AR
BICERELER

204,100,000/% ( ZZF— )\ 4 :
204,100,0004% ) F A E &
750,160 2 BRI AJ #i%
BT ERBER

2019 2018
—g-nE | —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFT EETFT
68,288 68,038
162,500 165,500
32,656 32,656
263,444 266,194

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR

197
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e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—NWF A=+ HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. BA (&)
A summary of the movements in the authorised and issued RARIBEZZ-—NEFRZZF-NFRA
share capital of the Company during the years ended 30 June —t+BEEFENEEMEBITRAZE
2019 and 2018 is as follows: WMEHLOT:
Number of
Number of series B
convertible convertible
Number of non-voting non-voting
ordinary preference preference
shares of shares of shares of
HK$0.01 each HK$0.15 each HK$0.16 each Par value
SREE

BREE BE016TZ
BRER BH015TZ BRHTAR

BE0.01T 2 TRRERE BREE
LEREYA EELRYA BERYE HE
Note 000 000 000 HK$000
Wit TR & & BB
Authorised: BE:
At 1July 2017, 30 June 2018, RZB—tftA-B
1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019 ZE-NERR=TH:
- \FtA-BR
“Z-hE~A=1A 70,000,000 2,000,000 312,500 1,050,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR:
At 1 July 2017 RZE-—tEtA-H 5,703,772 1,103,333 279,100 267,194
Issue of shares Bk @ 700,000 - - 7,000
Conversion of series B convertible EHBRT| R
non-voting preference shares BRERELR ) 400,000 = (75,000) (8,000)
At30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 W-E-NEAAZ AR
“E-\FtA-H 6,803,772 1,103,333 204,100 266,194
Conversion of non-voting preference shares ~ BAERZEE LR (© 25,000 (20,000) = (2,750)
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NEXA=TH 6,828,772 1,083,333 204,100 263,444
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e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 8 November 2017, the Company and Wide Select Investments
Limited (the "“Subscriber 11”), an independent third party, entered
into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Subscriber I
agreed to subscribe and the Company agreed to allot and issue an
aggregate of 700,000,000 shares at subscription price of HK$0.10
per share (the “Subscription I1”).

The Subscription Il was approved by the shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 28
November 2017 and a total of 700,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued on 30 November 2017. The premium on the issue of shares,
amounting to approximately HK$62,890,000, net of share issue
expenses, was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 16 April 2018, 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued as a result of the conversion of 75,000,000 series B
convertible non-voting preference shares.

On 10 August 2018, 25,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued as result if the conversion of 20,000,000 convertible
non-voting preference shares.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in

order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to

reduce debt.

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR

29. IRA& (&)

Mt

(@ RZZT—+tF+—ANH AQEHEWide
Select Investments Limited ([RREA—=] —%
BYE=7)FI L RERE B REAZ

FERE  MARFRRBAFRRMAE0.10
TLZ R ERL T 174 $£700,000,0008% i%
D ([REFE=]) -

RBEEE_ER-_ZT—+t&+—A=+/\E
BITZ AR Wxﬁ%ﬂhé—éﬂéﬁxﬁﬁt/ﬁ&
4 #£700,000,000 BB ER T — L F
T—A=TBEET -BITRND IBELNE
#62,890,0007T (BRI BT %) B 5T
ARRB 2RO HEER

(b) MHZZ—/\FWMAB+7<H  FK75,000,0004%
BRI AB KRR 2 ATHARE S S -
M AP #50.017T,2.400,000,000/% @A 2
HEET o

(© RZ=ZZT—N\FENA+H  HEK20,000,0008"
ﬂﬁ&m%ZTﬂx@%Hﬁ%mﬁ ST e
#0.017T 2.25,000,0000% & 38 & 21T -

AEEEREAZ BNAREANKEFE
REZREN URKRRIRHE SR K AEAM
R ERGEN G R REEARREN
AR B AR o

Eﬁﬁi—iﬁk%ﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁ : Zﬁ%@ﬂiﬁi@%’)ﬁ
BN THRRZBEER REBEATR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29.

200

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Total debt BEf4%8

Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt B FER
Total equity AR RE
Gearing ratio BEAELE

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the year resulted
primarily from the issue of shares and decrease in total debt.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group
received a report from the share registrars on substantial share
interests showing the non-public float and it demonstrated
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the
year.
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MR ENREEFERBE - ERERERE
RAEMBARRKRIR 2 #a -

RIB-NFR-F-N\FRA=+AZ
BEEBBHLRNT:

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

23,897 51,869

(47,701) (57,853)

(23,804) (5,984)

86,571 82,916

N/A N/A

T3 T8
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B tn B #AE TG Im D P EK o

AEBEBEFERB T Ltz E—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 30. XA T Z M BRR KRR EEEE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(@) FDBZHBMRRE

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iora BB F T BT T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR Z’E 10 10
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfH 3K - &2 & &
receivables H 4th i Uk BR X 275 275
Due from subsidiaries AN NGIE ¢ = 73,230
Bank and cash balances RITNIREEF 17,970 16,226
Total current assets REEEHE 18,245 89,731
Current liabilities REa s
Accruals and other payables JEEtE R R E M TR 1,403 1,773
Other loan HmER - 10,000
Due to subsidiaries FETB B A B FRIE 426 411
Total current liabilities REEEHEE 1,829 12,184
Net current assets REBEEEE 16,416 77,547
NET ASSETS BEEFE 16,426 77,557
Capital and reserves PR 2 R {4
Equity attributable to RARHE AEGHER
owners of the Company
Share capital AR 29 263,444 266,194
Reserves 2] 30(b) (247,018) (188,637)
EQUITY e 16,426 77,557

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 September
2019 and is signed on its behalf by:

Chan Hiu Kwan

EZeRX _T-NAFAA-TANAHELHAT

JIBERREE:

Lau Chun Fat, George

PREEE B
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE

szEp z2n) aram —2-nesx 201



EQES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2019 EZ—F

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

RF 5 R 2% B &

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

At1 July 2017 WoE—+r5HA—B

Loss for the year FRER

Issue of shares (note 31(c)) BOlRG (H#310)

Conversion of series B convertible & #BZ 51| #
non-voting preference shares ~ ERZEE LR
(note 31(d)) (H#31()

At30June 2018 and 1 July 2019 R=E—-\F~A=+AR

“F-NEt+A-H
Loss for the year ERNEE
Conversion of non-voting ERTARELTE
preference shares B

—NFNA=F+HILFE

(b) RATzHEED

30. ARFZUBRARKREFEEE (£)

31. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
ki iaE EXREf#E ZiER g
HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BT
630,402 150 (701,270) (70,718)
- - (188,809) (188,809)
62,890 = = 62,890
8,000 = = 8,000
701,292 150 (890,079) (188,637)
- - (61,131) (61,131)
2,750 = = 2,750
704,042 150 (951,210) (247,018)
31. %%
(a) &%

AEBZREMEZHLBENEGS
BalkAtrElaRMiGaEas

therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

31. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Plant and machinery revaluation reserve

(iv)

The plant and machinery revaluation reserve has
been set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for plant and
machinery in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal

value of the shares repurchased which was paid out
of the distributable reserves of the Company.

31. f&E (&)
(b) FEZHERAR
() BRGHEE

RERSHERRNE ARRMK
MEEBRZESA DR TALRA
PR - HESZRERE D KA B A HTR
ARAIBEEEENBEXEHHE
Hi 2 (& 7%

(i) EZ#fE

E X FHEBRRERINEBYE
BRAMEEZMBEREZRE Z
E ittt =N b B e D (A
S 2 @R R ERIE -

(iii) B REEE R
BE R EEEAFEEE LR
I B RIFAR B B 75 K MY 5E4(d)
Pt 2 SRR S M 2R IR 2 & R
BUR R IE

(iv) EXEE#E

BEAE L FEREBAR R DK
R 2 FrE B < E{E °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 32. URGBAEB 2R

Equity-settled share option scheme

On 28 November 2017, the Company terminated the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 18 March 2008
and the rules of the new share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
be approved as the new share option scheme.

The Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants include the full-time and part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors, business consultants, suppliers,
customers, legal and financial advisers of the Company and
the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 28 November 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company'’s shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the
offer.

32. URGOABER 2R (&)

DS EE B8 (&)

BRYARACEE FTETBRABREE
BRRSBEEFE 2 EMBEA LT 2BRE &
TESE S B IERITE S RUE o AN - 1A
BYPARRFERRIBILIERITES
BEZEMBEALT 2 BRIER+ A
A2 EER BRAAREBITRG Z
0.1%BE (AR TERBEARARMDES
B EE) BB 78 5,000,000 0 15 B TE 4
FERRARREARE E#E-

AFRARRE L B HE28RAX A RERA
REAHABR 1T UBEARTEREZE
K- ERBEREZTENRESEE IR
FEBHMREFAE MR TERRHBRESR
HWBEHES AFZ BN ZE 2 H A
(MARBF)ER

BREZTEERESEE  ETEER
AT z&m%E (VAR BRAD R e B
REL B HEB A2 WHE : (ii)AA A
BN BEZRLBRER QB MR ER
7 BB R Az F W E - (i) ARE]
RO RELEREROB Mz mE:.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 EZ—F

—NFNA=F+HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

33.

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised or expired
under the Scheme during the year (2018: Nil).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transaction

During the year, loan from non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary of approximately HK$16,044,000 was settled
by capital contribution to non-wholly subsidiary from
non-controlling shareholder.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
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(b)

TEFRERS

RER - EUH B AR FEERRRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #L 2 = F—FNH=+HILFZE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. MEBRERERMT (&)

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

(b) MEFZDFELEAGEZHER (F)

Capital
contribution
from non-
1 July Cash controlling 30 June
2018 flows share holder 2019
—E2-N\F kEZER Z—T-hE
+tA—H BeRE BREEE ~A=1+H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JBETFT BT T BT T BETFT
Other loans (note 26)  E A E R (f1:#26) 26,044 (10,000) (16,044) -
offset
1 July Cash with trade 30 June
2017 flows receivables 2018
—E—+tF Bk Z—B-N\F
+tA—H ReRE REZEE KA=t+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT
Other loans (note 26) H A& (H7226) 30,000 10,000 (13,956) 26,044
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &2 —F—NFNA=1HILF/F

34. PENDING LITIGATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following pending litigation:

(a)

(b)

On 19 January 2004, a winding up petition was filed
against the Company by certain ex-senior employees
of the Group claiming for payment in the sum of
approximately HK$594,000 from the Company in respect
of an award/order dated 20 October 2003 granted by
the Labour Tribunal in respect of the severance and
bonus dispute between the Company and the ex-senior
employees. The unsettled amounts of approximately
HK$594,000 were fully accrued in trade and other
payables during the year ended 30 June 2005 and remain
outstanding as at 30 June 2018 and 2019 even though
the case had ceased to be active since the year ended 30
June 2005.

On 24 July 2018, Ratio, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, received a claim from a former director
of Ratio for a total sum of approximately HK$913,000
in respect of the salary and severance dispute between
Ratio and the former director. The Company considered
that she was not entitled to the said sum for the major
reasons that her employment was terminated because
of her misconducts and the termination payment made
by Ratio to her was more than sufficient. The Company
also commenced the action in the High Court against her
for, inter alia, breach of fiduciary duties and contractual
duties owed by her to Ratio. The Group seeks an order for
damages and/or account of profit against her, which are
subject to assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 &/ Z —F—NWFNA=1HI F/F

35. LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. HEHAIE
At 30 June 2019 the total future minimum lease payments R-ZE—AERNA=Z1+H EREKRRT
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: BHEGEHE s xEEENREBOT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NF
HK$000 HK$°000
B F T BT
Within one year —FR 3,881 4,792
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF
(BEEEMF) 12,255 15,587
After five years HF% = 3,083
16,136 23,462
Operating lease payments represented rental payable by the KEMENRERAEERAEETHAE
Group for certain of its offices, warehouses, director’s quarter BE EEEEREEMEMZIES - FHEH
and car parking spaces. Leases are negotiated for terms WBEANT 12106  HERNABERBEE &
ranging from 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed over the lease WEBESAEE -

terms and do not include contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R AR M

For the year ended 30 June 2019 #Z —F—WFNNA=1HIFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.

(@ In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions
with its related parties during the year:

XNT-—HBERRZ
MERx (Aet)

Interest expense paid to
a related company (note)

Notes:

An ex-director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, controls the related
company.

(b) Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company'’s
directors and highest paid individual as disclosed in note
14 was as follows:

BEALXRS

(@) FMREEMBRRZTREZZEFRE
AER G RGN AEERF R HE
HEEALTZRBWMT:

2019 2018
—2-nE | —F-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T EHETFT
170 61

BT

AIEER B RS EE AR -

(b)) "EEXTZERABNFMH (BIER
FTARABEZRNRWFARENRS

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

210

rSEGEER
RERL IR 12 A
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FIALTHFIE) T
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFTT BETT
2,610 4,926
54 95
2,664 5,021




The following is a summary of the published results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in

the note below:

RESULTS

Revenue
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Loss before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year from
continuing operations
Loss from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

R&
LN

ERIEEERH

BRI B
FEhER/ (BR)

REFBEEEBL
FEBR

REERIEEERHL
B

FEBR

THIALREL:

ARFHBA
IR

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEME

HTIMEMSRCEEMGBRAREE TEE
BUARBERAGBZHENT

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE | -\ ZEZE—+HF ZE-R"F Z—E-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT T BT
131,778 156,572 152,696 139,981 121,251

= = = = 36,403

131,778 156,572 152,696 139,981 157,654

(10,210) (165,572) (51,862) (51,075) (243,106)
782 5,954 521 (478) 181
(9,428) (159,618) (51,341) (51,553) (242,925)

_ _ _ - (9,255)

(9,428) (159,618) (51,341) (51,553) (252,180)
(3,898) (138,268) (46,075) (47,251) (245,444)
(5,530) (21,350) (5,266) (4,302) (6,736)
(9,428) (159,618) (51,341) (51,553) (252,180)

EEZER (ZR) ARAF —E-NFFRHR

211



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFEHBHHRE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Current assets MEBEE
Non-current liabilities ERBaE
Current liabilities HEaE

Net assets BEFE
Attributable to: THALEMR:
Owners of the Company ARAEBA
Non-controlling interests FERER

212

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE | ZB-\F B+ —T-RF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT EETFT
7,522 17,020 105,867 134,702 162,015
102,946 117,765 125,357 85,793 86,442
(122) (1,594) (1,146) (732) -
(23,775) (50,275) (63,999) (64,859) (42,185)
86,571 82,916 166,079 154,904 206,272
92,744 99,176 163,856 148,254 195,439
(6,173) (16,260) 2,223 6,650 10,833
86,571 82,916 166,079 154,904 206,272
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